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Description

7KH�IROORZLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�GHULYHG�IURP�DQG�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�IXOO�WH[W�DQG�GH¿QLWLRQV�VHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�
Prospectus and Supplements to the Prospectus. 

GQG Global UCITS ICAV (the "ICAV") is an open-ended umbrella ICAV with segregated liability between its sub-funds. 
The ICAV was registered under the Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles Acts 2015 and 2020 (the “ICAV Act”) on 27 
October 2016 and received authorisation from the Central Bank of Ireland on 25 January 2017 as an Undertaking for Collective 
Investment in Transferable Securities (“UCITS”) in accordance with the provisions of the European Communities (undertakings 
for collective investment in transferable securities) Regulation 2011, (as amended) (the “UCITS Regulations”). 

7KH�LQVWUXPHQW�RI�LQFRUSRUDWLRQ��³,QVWUXPHQW´��SURYLGHV�WKDW�WKH�,&$9�PD\�R൵HU�VHSDUDWH�FODVVHV�RI�VKDUHV��HDFK�UHSUHVHQWLQJ�
interests in a fund, with each fund comprising a separate and distinct portfolio of investments. The assets of each fund will be 
invested separately on behalf of each fund in accordance with the investment objective and policies of each fund and the assets 
and liabilities of each fund are segregated as a matter of Irish law. The value of the shares of each fund shall at all times equal 
their net asset value. The base currency of each fund will be determined by the Directors and will be set out in the Prospectus 
and/or Supplement for the relevant fund. 

As at 31 December 2021, the ICAV had three authorised funds. GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund, GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund and GQG Partner U.S. Equity Fund. Each a Fund, collectively the Funds:

Approval Date Launch Date
GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund 25 January 2017 15 February 2017
GQG Partners Global Equity Fund 3 December 2018 7 January 2019
GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund 31 December 2020 2 February 2021

As at 31 December 2021, GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund (the “Fund”) had the following share classes in issue:

Class A EUR Accumulating Class I CHF Accumulating Class R EUR Accumulating
Class A GBP Accumulating Class I EUR Accumulating Class R GBP Accumulating
Class A USD Accumulating Class I GBP Accumulating Class R USD Accumulating
Class F EUR Accumulating Class I NOK Accumulating Class S EUR Accumulating
Class F GBP Accumulating Class I USD Accumulating Class S GBP Accumulating*
Class F USD Accumulating Class S GBP Distributing

Class S USD Accumulating

* Class S GBP Accumulating was launched 24 August 2021. 

As at 31 December 2021, GQG Partners Global Equity Fund (the “Fund”) had the following share classes in issue:

Class A USD Accumulating Class I EUR Accumulating Class P USD Accumulating 
Class A EUR Accumulating* Class I GBP Accumulating Class R EUR Accumulating

Class I JPY Accumulating Class R USD Accumulating
Class I USD Accumulating Class R USD Distributing**

* Class A EUR Accumulating was launched 13 December 2021.
** Class R USD Distributing was launched 12 April 2021.
 

As at 31 December 2021, GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund (the “Fund”) had the following share classes in issue:

Class I GBP Accumulating* Class Q EUR Accumulating**
Class I USD Accumulating***** Class Q GBP Accumulating***

Class Q USD Accumulating**** 

* Class I GBP Accumulating was launched 2 March 2021. 
** Class Q EUR Accumulating was launched 2 February 2021. 
*** Class Q GBP Accumulating was launched 9 June 2021.
**** Class Q USD Accumulating was launched 12 February 2021.
***** Class I USD Accumulating was launched 24 June 2021.

6HH�WKH�UHOHYDQW�6XSSOHPHQW�RI�WKH�)XQG�IRU�IXUWKHU�GHWDLOV��7KH�FUHDWLRQ�RI�IXUWKHU�FODVVHV�PXVW�EH�QRWL¿HG�WR��DQG�FOHDUHG�LQ�
advance with, the Central Bank. 
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Investment Objective and Policy

The investment objectives and policies for the Funds are formulated by the ICAV at the time of creation of the Funds and will be 
VSHFL¿HG�LQ�WKH�UHOHYDQW�6XSSOHPHQW�WR�WKH�3URVSHFWXV��7KH�LQYHVWPHQW�REMHFWLYHV�IRU�WKH�)XQGV�DUH�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

The Fund’s investment objective is to provide capital appreciation over the long-term. 

The investment policies of the Fund are as follows: 

Under normal circumstances, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its net assets in equity and equity related securities of emerging 
market companies. 

The equity securities in which the Fund will invest are primarily publicly traded common stocks. Equity and equity related 
securities include depositary receipts (including American Depositary Receipts (“ADRs”), European Depositary Receipts 
�³('5V´��DQG�*OREDO�'HSRVLWDU\�5HFHLSWV��³*'5V´����ZKLFK�DUH�FHUWL¿FDWHV�W\SLFDOO\�LVVXHG�E\�D�EDQN�RU�WUXVW�FRPSDQ\�WKDW�
represent ownership interests in securities of non-U.S. companies, and Participatory Notes (“P-Notes”), which are derivative 
instruments designed to replicate equity exposure in certain foreign markets, for example Bangladesh, India, Pakistan, Saudi 
Arabia, South Korea and Taiwan. P-Notes will be used as a means of investment where direct investment is either impossible or 
XQGXO\�GL൶FXOW�GXH�WR�ORFDO�LQYHVWPHQW�UHVWULFWLRQV��6XFK�3�1RWHV�ZLOO�QRW�HPEHG�OHYHUDJH��7KH�)XQG�PD\�LQYHVW�LQ�VHFXULWLHV�
of companies with any market capitalisation. The Fund may also invest in securities listed on the Russian market as listed in 
WKH�3URVSHFWXV�ZLWKRXW� UHVWULFWLRQ��(TXLW\�PDUNHWV�KDYH�UHFHQWO\�EHHQ�QHJDWLYHO\�D൵HFWHG�E\� LQFUHDVLQJ�JHRSROLWLFDO� WHQVLRQ��
particularly between Russia and Ukraine. For further information, refer to Note 17. In addition, the Fund may gain exposure 
to Chinese securities by utilising the StockConnect Programme to purchase China A shares. The Fund may also invest in other 
UCITS and ETFs, up to 10% of its net assets, and equity and equity related securities that are issued by companies in developed 
countries.

The Fund may also retain up to 100% of its Net Asset Value in cash or cash equivalents which shall include, but shall not be limited 
WR��VKRUW�WHUP�¿[HG�LQFRPH�VHFXULWLHV�LQFOXGLQJ�0RQH\�0DUNHW�,QVWUXPHQWV��SHQGLQJ�UHLQYHVWPHQW�RU�IRU�XVH�DV�FROODWHUDO��DULVLQJ�
from the Fund’s use of Financial Derivative Instruments (FDIs) if this is considered appropriate to the investment objective. 

7KH�)XQG�PD\�HQJDJH�LQ�VHFXULWLHV�OHQGLQJ�IRU�H൶FLHQW�SRUWIROLR�PDQDJHPHQW�RQO\��

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

The Fund’s investment objective is to seek long term capital appreciation.

The investment policies of the Fund are as follows:

The Fund may invest in equity securities or equity-linked instruments, including common stock, preferred stock and options, of 
companies located anywhere in the world, including, but not limited to, Emerging Markets Countries and the United States. This 
Fund has no limitation on the capitalization size of the companies in which it invests, the industry focus of companies invested in 
nor on its ability to invest in securities issued from any country. The Fund will invest in various countries and various industries. 
The Fund will also invest in equity related securities including depositary receipts (including American Depositary Receipts 
�³$'5V´���(XURSHDQ�'HSRVLWDU\�5HFHLSWV��³('5V´��DQG�*OREDO�'HSRVLWDU\�5HFHLSWV��³*'5V´����ZKLFK�DUH�FHUWL¿FDWHV�W\SLFDOO\�
issued by a bank or trust company that represent ownership interests in securities of non-U.S. companies.

7KH� )XQG�PD\� XVH� WKH� IROORZLQJ� GHULYDWLYH� VHFXULWLHV� IRU� LQYHVWPHQW� SXUSRVHV�� 3�1RWHV� ³�DV� GH¿QHG� DERYH�´� DQG�RU� /RZ�
Exercise Price Options (“LEPOs”), collectively known as “Synthetic Equities,” where the use of such securities is consistent 
with the Fund’s Strategies. The Fund may use Synthetic Equities primarily to gain access to securities which may be otherwise 
inaccessible to foreign investors or too costly for direct access to the underlying securities, such as due to market registration 
issues. For P-Notes, these countries include Bangladesh, China, India, Pakistan, Saudi Arabia, South Korea and Taiwan. Some 
Synthetic Equities are instruments that attempt to replicate ownership of an underlying equity security in foreign stock markets 
ZKHUH�QRQ�UHVLGHQW�VKDUHKROGHUV�DUH�XQDEOH�WR�RZQ�VKDUHV�GLUHFWO\�RU�¿QG�LW�DGYDQWDJHRXV�WR�RZQ�VKDUHV�WKURXJK�WKLV�LQGLUHFW�
vehicle. Such Synthetic Equities will not embed leverage. The Fund’s use of Synthetic Equities is subject to a limit of 15% of 
Net Asset Value.
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The Fund may invest in securities listed on the Russian market as listed in the Prospectus without restriction. The Fund may 
invest in such securities, however under no circumstances will it exceed 30% of Net Asset Value. Equity markets have recently 
EHHQ�QHJDWLYHO\�D൵HFWHG�E\�LQFUHDVLQJ�JHRSROLWLFDO�WHQVLRQ��SDUWLFXODUO\�EHWZHHQ�5XVVLD�DQG�8NUDLQH��)RU�IXUWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ��
refer to Note 17. In addition, the Fund may gain exposure to Chinese securities by utilizing the Stock Connect program to 
purchase China A shares. The Fund may also invest in units of other UCITS and ETFs, up to 10% of its net assets, and equity 
and equity related securities that are issued by companies in developed countries.

The Fund may retain up to 100% of its Net Asset Value in cash or cash equivalents which shall include, but shall not be limited to, 
VKRUW�WHUP�¿[HG�LQFRPH�VHFXULWLHV��ERWK�VRYHUHLJQ�DQG�FRUSRUDWH��LQFOXGLQJ�0RQH\�0DUNHW�,QVWUXPHQWV��SHQGLQJ�UHLQYHVWPHQW�
or for use as collateral, arising from the Fund’s use of FDIs if this is considered appropriate to the investment objective.

7KH�)XQG�PD\�HQJDJH�LQ�VHFXULWLHV�OHQGLQJ�IRU�H൶FLHQW�SRUWIROLR�PDQDJHPHQW�RQO\�

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund

The Fund’s investment objective is to seek long term capital appreciation.

The investment policies of the Fund are as follows:

Once the Fund is fully invested, under normal circumstances the Fund invests at least 80% of its net assets in equity securities or 
equity-linked instruments, including common stock, preferred stock and options, of U.S. companies. The Fund also may invest 
in equity securities of non-U.S. companies in both developed and Emerging Markets.

This Fund has no limitation on the capitalization size of the companies in which it invests nor the industry focus of companies 
invested in. The Fund will invest in various industries.

The Fund will also invest in equity related securities including depositary receipts (including American Depositary Receipts 
�³$'5V´���(XURSHDQ�'HSRVLWDU\�5HFHLSWV��³('5V´��DQG�*OREDO�'HSRVLWDU\�5HFHLSWV��³*'5V´����ZKLFK�DUH�FHUWL¿FDWHV�W\SLFDOO\�
issued by a bank or trust company that represent ownership interests in securities of non-U.S. companies.

7KH�)XQG�PD\�XVH� WKH�IROORZLQJ�GHULYDWLYH�VHFXULWLHV� IRU� LQYHVWPHQW�SXUSRVHV��3�1RWHV�³�DV�GH¿QHG�DERYH�´�DQG�RU�/(32V�
³�DV�GH¿QHG�DERYH�´��FROOHFWLYHO\�NQRZQ�DV�³6\QWKHWLF�(TXLWLHV�´�ZKHUH�WKH�XVH�RI�VXFK�VHFXULWLHV�LV�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�)XQG¶V�
strategies. The Fund may use Synthetic Equities primarily to gain access to securities which may be otherwise inaccessible to 
foreign investors or too costly or otherwise burdensome for direct access to the underlying securities, such as due to market 
registration issues. For P-Notes, these countries include Bangladesh, China, India, Pakistan, Saudi Arabia, South Korea and 
Taiwan. Some Synthetic Equities are instruments that attempt to replicate ownership of an underlying equity security in foreign 
VWRFN�PDUNHWV�ZKHUH�QRQ�UHVLGHQW�VKDUHKROGHUV�DUH�XQDEOH�WR�RZQ�VKDUHV�GLUHFWO\�RU�¿QG�LW�DGYDQWDJHRXV�WR�RZQ�VKDUHV�WKURXJK�
this indirect vehicle. Such Synthetic Equities will not embed leverage. The Fund’s use of Synthetic Equities is subject to a limit 
of 15% of Net Asset Value.

7KH�)XQG�PD\�LQYHVW�LQ�LQLWLDO�SXEOLF�R൵HULQJV��³,32V´��

Ancillary Non-U.S. Investments.

The Fund may invest up to 20% of net assets in non-U.S. investments. For such investments, the Fund follows the following 
investment policies. In addition to its primary investments, the Fund may also invest in: units of other UCITS (subject to a 
limit of 10% of Net Asset Value); and real estate investment trusts (subject to a limit of 15% of Net Asset Value). The Fund’s 
investments in collective investment schemes shall be in accordance with Central Bank requirements, the UCITS Regulations 
and subject to the limits set out in Schedule II of the Prospectus.

The Fund may retain up to 100% of its Net Asset Value in cash or cash equivalents which shall include, but shall not be limited to, 
VKRUW�WHUP�¿[HG�LQFRPH�VHFXULWLHV��ERWK�VRYHUHLJQ�DQG�FRUSRUDWH��LQFOXGLQJ�0RQH\�0DUNHW�,QVWUXPHQWV��SHQGLQJ�UHLQYHVWPHQW�
or for use as collateral, arising from the Fund’s use of FDIs if this is considered appropriate to the investment objective.

7KH�)XQG�PD\�HQJDJH�LQ�VHFXULWLHV�OHQGLQJ�IRU�H൶FLHQW�SRUWIROLR�PDQDJHPHQW�RQO\�

Investment Management

GQG Partners LLC serves as Investment Manager pursuant to an investment management agreement dated 25 January 2017.

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund (Continued)
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$V�ZH�ZDWFK�ZKDW¶V�XQIROGLQJ�LQ�IURQW�RI�XV�WRGD\��ZH¶UH�FRQFHUQHG�WKDW�PDQ\�LQYHVWRUV�KDYH�FRQÀDWHG�KRSH�RI�IDVW�DQG�IXULRXV�
growth from the immediate past for durable compounding well into the future. In our view, this is rather problematic, mostly 
because of short term, behavioral changes driven almost entirely by the current pandemic environment and the massive amounts 
of global central bank stimulus that has followed. Because of this, we believe there’s a false sense of sustainability which is 
FDXVLQJ�LQYHVWRUV�WR�IHHO�WKDW�WKH�FXUUHQW��XQFKDUDFWHULVWLF�ERXWV�RI�KLJKHU�LQÀDWLRQ�DQG�ULVLQJ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�LQ�GHYHORSHG�PDUNHWV�
PD\�QRW�KDYH�WKH�LOO�H൵HFWV�WKDW�KLVWRU\�KDV�VKRZQ�XV��

:LWK�WKLV�LQ�PLQG��DQG�UHFHQF\�ELDV�LV�TXLWH�D�SRZHUIXO�H൵HFW��ZH�FDQ�XQGHUVWDQG�ZK\�VRPH�LQYHVWRUV�KDYH�EHFRPH�FRPIRUWDEOH�
ZLWK�VXFK�KLJKO\�YDOXHG�FRPSDQLHV�VSHFL¿FDOO\�DQG�HYHQ�FHUWDLQ�VHFWRUV�PRUH�JHQHUDOO\��$IWHU�DOO��ZH�KHUH�DW�*4*�KDYH�RZQHG�
some of these names ourselves in the not too distant past. In many cases, rising valuations were not a headwind, but very much 
D�WDLOZLQG�DQG�LQ�D�YDULHW\�RI�LQVWDQFHV��OHG�WR�VXSHULRU�UHWXUQV��7KLV�SKHQRPHQRQ�RFFXUUHG�UHJDUGOHVV�RI�FRPSDQ\�SUR¿WDELOLW\��
0DNLQJ�WKLQJV�PRUH�GL൶FXOW��LQ�WKH�ODVW�GHFDGH��LI�D�PDQDJHU�GLGQ¶W�RZQ�VXFK�FRPSDQLHV��WKHUH�ZDV�DOPRVW�D�JXDUDQWHH�WKDW�VXFK�
managers would have underperformed. And if rates remain near zero in perpetuity, future earnings are obviously worth more, so 
at least for a period of time, some of the overall market behavior doesn’t appear to be completely irrational. However, based on 
current consensus, investors may be extrapolating the reality of this “overearning” too much into their forward estimates, which 
in our view, may be too optimistic and therefore, unsustainable. In fact, several of these companies have already begun to reset 
future earnings expectations which led us to part company from many of these names over the last 12 months or so. 

With this in mind, we feel the market temperature may be dropping. We have already seen some cooling and signs of cracks 
in the latest round of earnings results for several technology and consumer discretionary companies. As the dynamics in these 
sectors begin to shift, we believe it will have major implications for the market as a whole. Therefore, rather than ignore the 
potential storm ahead of us, we have chosen to prepare for the possible winter. 

:H�EHOLHYH�VXFK�DQ�HQYLURQPHQW�FRXOG�EH�PDUNHG�E\�SURORQJHG��VOLJKWO\�KLJKHU�LQÀDWLRQ��ULVLQJ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��PDVVLYH�GH�UDWLQJ�
and a correction of company overearnings, which were fueled by ongoing stimulus programs. Therefore, our preparations have 
us becoming more cautious, and more valuation sensitive, looking for businesses with a higher degree of earnings certainty or 
those where we believe their outlook is much better than consensus. This is not an attempt to make some grandiose top-down, 
macro call. Quite the contrary, we’re simply doing what we always do - following the data on a bottom-up basis. 

STICKY INFLATION COULD DISRUPT THE OVEREARNING TREND 

Prices have been accelerating throughout 2021 across the globe. Even the chair of the Federal Reserve, Jerome Powell, dropped 
the word “transitory” from recent remarks. However, we believe that the CPI could still be much higher than expected for the 
UHPDLQGHU�RI�������,I�ZH�DUH�FRUUHFW��WKHUH�FRXOG�EH�D�PHDQLQJIXO�LPSDFW�RQ�FRUSRUDWH�SUR¿W�PDUJLQV�DQG�RYHUDOO�VSHQGLQJ��(YHQ�
though we build portfolios on a bottom-up basis, we cannot ignore the macro backdrop in which companies operate. Indeed, 
WKH�JUDQXODU�ZRUN�RXU�DQDO\VWV�GR�±�ERWK�HYDOXDWLQJ�FRPSDQ\�UHVXOWV�DQG�RXU�QRQ�WUDGLWLRQDO�DQDO\VLV�±�GULYHV�RXU�PDFUR�YLHZV��
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2XU� SRUWIROLR� FRPSDQLHV� DUH� H[SHULHQFLQJ� WKH� LQÀDWLRQ� WKDW� \RX� VHH� LOOXVWUDWHG� LQ� ([KLELW� ���8WLOL]LQJ�$WODQWD� )HG� GDWD�� DV�
KLJKOLJKWHG�LQ�([KLELW����VWLFN\�LQÀDWLRQ��PHDVXUHG�RQ�HLWKHU�D���PRQWK�DQQXDOL]HG�EDVLV�RU�D����PRQWK�EDVLV��KDV�OHDSHG�R൵�WKH�
page and is now back in 2006 territory. 

,I�LQÀDWLRQ�LV�PXFK�OHVV�WHPSRUDU\�WKDQ�PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQWV�WKLQN��DQG�WKH�GUHDGHG�³ZURQJHU�IRU�ORQJHU´�WDNHV�KROG��ZH�EHOLHYH�
equities with the longest duration (think work-from-home and high-revenue growth companies) could see the most downside 
risk. 

$GGLWLRQDOO\��ZKHQ�ZH�SDLU�WKH�WUDGLWLRQDO�³WRS�GRZQ´�PHWULFV�RI�LQÀDWLRQ��ZLWK�ZKDW�ZH¶UH�VHHLQJ�DQG�KHDULQJ�IURP�WKH�ERWWRP��
up, particularly from shipping companies, and their continued bottlenecks, we believe quite a negative cocktail of data is brewing. 

7KHUHIRUH��ZLWK�WKH�EDFNGURS�EHLQJ�SULPHG�IRU�VWLFNLHU�LQÀDWLRQ�GDWD�FRQWLQXLQJ�LQWR������DQG�EH\RQG��ZH�EHOLHYH�WKDW�FXUUHQW�
consensus earnings estimates in some areas may be too high. 

VALUATION INFLATION: PRICE-TO-REVENUE VS. PRICE-TO-EARNINGS 

(YHQ� FRPSDQLHV� WKDW� PD\� DSSHDU� DWWUDFWLYH� RQ� D� SULFH�WR�UHYHQXH� YDOXDWLRQ� EDVLV� ±� ZKLFK� LV� WKH� FDVH� IRU�PDQ\� SUR¿WDEOH�
WHFKQRORJ\�FRPSDQLHV�WKDW�DSSHDU�FKHDS�ZKHQ�FRPSDUHG�WR�XQSUR¿WDEOH�RQHV�±�PLJKW�QRW�EH�LPPXQH��LQ�RXU�YLHZ��

To be clear, price-to-revenue can be a useful valuation metric and we have owned some high-multiple names on that basis over 
the years. Fast growing companies overinvest in their business with the expectations being that margins should come through 
RYHU�WLPH�DV�WKH\�DFKLHYH�VFDOH��7KH�SUREOHP�LV�WKDW�WRR�RIWHQ�LQYHVWRUV�LQÀDWH�WKH�XVHIXOQHVV�RI�SULFH�WR�VDOHV��L�H���UHYHQXH��DV�
a metric and assume every software company can grow into its potentially high valuation. 

This is a major fallacy, says Orlando Bravo of Thoma Bravo, a successful software investor with over 230 deals under his belt 
over the last two decades. 

It’s not unusual to hear investors mistakenly say, “This company’s growing really fast now. It’s $200 million in Annual Recurring 
5HYHQXH��$55���ZKLFK�LV�SOHQW\�RI�VFDOH�E\�WKH�ZD\�WR�UXQ�LW�SUR¿WDEO\��DQG�,¶P�JRLQJ�WR�PRGHO�ZKDW�PDQDJHPHQW�WROG�PH��ZKLFK�
was a 30% operating margin in year four. I understand why they’re losing a lot of money now is because they’re growing at 
50%,” Bravo said in a recent podcast.1 

“But see, the operating world doesn’t work that way,” Bravo adds. “That company in year four is not all of a sudden going to 
change how they plan, how they think about initiatives, how they tell their direct reports what’s important and what’s not. It just 
doesn’t work that way. They’ll never get there. You’ve got to start now to get there.” 

9DOXDWLRQ�LQÀDWLRQ��KRZHYHU��LQ�RXU�YLHZ�LV�QRW�MXVW�IRXQG�ZLWK�WHFKQRORJ\�FRPSDQLHV��:H�DUH�DOVR�VHHLQJ�YDOXDWLRQ�LQÀDWLRQ�LQ�
other sectors. For example, take a look at a well-known Swiss construction company, Sika, with CHF 9 billion (9 billion Swiss 
francs) in revenue. 

:H�EHOLHYH�WKH�FRPSDQ\�UHPDLQV�DQ�LPSUHVVLYH�EXVLQHVV�DV�LW�FRQWLQXHV�WR�EHQH¿W�IURP�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�VSHQGLQJ�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKH�
energy transition. However, the company trades at a P/E of ~45x, and we believe they’re likely to face slower earnings over time 
GXH�WR�EDVH�H൵HFWV��(YHQ�WKRXJK�WKH�DQWLFLSDWHG�JURZWK�UDWH�IRU�WKH�QH[W�FRXSOH�RI�\HDUV�LV�DWWUDFWLYH��LQ�RXU�YLHZ��ZH�VWLOO�EHOLHYH�
WKDW�RYHU�WLPH��JURZWK�ZLOO�VORZ��DQG�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�ZLOO�XOWLPDWHO\�UHÀHFW�WKLV�ZHOO�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�WKDW�GHFOLQH��

2XU�FRQFHUQ� LV� WKDW�PDQ\�FRPSDQLHV�PD\�EH� LPSDFWHG�E\�DQ�RYHUDOO�GHÀDWLQJ�RI� WKHLU�SULFH�WR�IXQGDPHQWDO�PXOWLSOHV��HYHQ�
though they may be great businesses. For example, after the tech bubble burst, Cisco Systems went from ~25x price to sales to 
around 4x prices-to-sales despite delivering on its promise to essentially build the infrastructure that makes the internet function. 
The peak market cap of Cisco Systems at the time was ~US$500B and yet now, more than 20 years later, it’s only $230B, despite 
delivering strong earnings growth! Markets had already moved on to perceived greener pastures. Imagine what the valuations of 
several large technology stocks may look like if something similar were to happen today? 

YESTERDAY’S LOSERS COULD BE TOMORROW’S WINNERS 

We believe cracks are becoming more visible as the sensitivity to earnings/guidance misses seems to have increased lately, 
as exhibited by strong stock price declines from recent winners -- particularly high revenue growth software companies. For 
example, DocuSign fell over 40 per cent in one day in December when the company missed analyst expectations on revenue 
guidance.2 

STICKY INFLATION COULD DISRUPT THE OVEREARNING TREND  (continued)
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Should these type of “growth miss jitters” continue, and we think it’s quite likely that they will, we believe that companies that 
KDYH�EHHQ�XQGHUHDUQLQJ�PRUH�UHFHQWO\�FRXOG�EH�WKH�ELJJHVW�EHQH¿FLDULHV�JRLQJ�IRUZDUG��

For example, we see a variety of global beverage companies, with strong category share and well-known brands, that could 
achieve sustainable 7-10 per cent earnings growth while currently trading at less than 18-20x forward earnings. These companies 
were hit on the “on-trade” side of the business, given the closing of bars and restaurants during the depths of Covid, and are just 
now starting to recover. 

Similarly, some utilities which we believe can deliver 6-8 per cent earnings per share growth with a high degree of certainty 
and a secure dividend yield of 3-5 per cent are now trading at 15-20x forward earnings. In our view, a highly dependable, low 
GRXEOH�GLJLW�WRWDO�UHWXUQ�SUR¿OH��H[KLELWV�IDU�OHVV�ULVN�WRGD\�WKDQ�PDQ\�KLJK�À\LQJ�FRPSDQLHV��WUDGLQJ�DW������[������UHYHQXH��
or higher, despite the expectation for decelerating revenue growth to pre-Covid rates. 

We believe this adaptability to reposition our portfolios is a hallmark of our process. We try to avoid dogmatism. In our view, a 
high-quality company can become a low-quality investment if you pay too much for it. 

ADAPT AND REACT 

The common theme you can probably notice here, whether we are looking at developed or emerging markets, technology or 
energy names, is that we are always trying to avoid the bias that inevitably falls from anchoring. While we want to learn from 
history, we also want to be careful not to anchor too much on what worked, and didn’t work, in previous years. 

So, for 2022, we will keep reading, reviewing, and rethinking what’s before us and go where the data leads us. We hope you do 
the same. 

As always, thank you for your continued support. 

Rajiv Jain 

&KDLUPDQ�	�&KLHI�,QYHVWPHQW�2൶FHU�*4*�3DUWQHUV�//&�

March 2022

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 “!e Art of So"ware Buyouts,” Orlando Bravo, December 27, 2021, Colossus, LLC. https://www.joincolossus.com/episodes/88585306/

bravo-the-art-of-so"ware-buyouts?tab=transcript 

 

2 “DocuSign shares plunge 42% a"er the company gave weak guidance,” Lauren Feiner, December 3, 2021, CNBC.com. https://www.cnbc.com/2021/12/03/docusign-stock-plunges-

a"er-the-company-gave-weak-q4-guidance.html

YESTERDAY’S LOSERS COULD BE TOMORROW’S WINNERS  (continued)
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

The information provided in this commentary should not be considered a recommendation to purchase or sell any particular 
security. There is no assurance that any securities discussed herein will remain in an account’s portfolio at the time you receive 
this report or that securities sold have not been repurchased. The securities discussed do not represent an account’s entire 
portfolio and, in the aggregate, may represent only a small percentage of an account’s portfolio holdings. 

,W�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�DVVXPHG�WKDW�DQ\�RI�WKH�VHFXULWLHV�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RU�KROGLQJV�GLVFXVVHG�ZHUH�RU�ZLOO�SURYH�WR�EH�SUR¿WDEOH��RU�WKDW�
WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�RU�GHFLVLRQV�ZH�PDNH�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH�ZLOO�EH�SUR¿WDEOH�RU�ZLOO�HTXDO�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�
of the securities discussed herein.
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

The Directors of GQG Global UCITS ICAV (the “ICAV”) present the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of GQG 
Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund, GQG Partners Global Equity Fund and GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund (the “Funds”) 
IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG�WR����'HFHPEHU��������

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�RSWHG�WR�SUHSDUH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�)XQGV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�,ULVK�&ROOHFWLYH�$VVHW�PDQDJHPHQW�
9HKLFOHV�$FWV������DQG������ �WKH�³,&$9�$FW´���$Q\� UHIHUHQFH�KHUHDIWHU� WR� WKH�¿QDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�ZLOO�PHDQ� WKH�¿QDQFLDO�
statements of the Funds of the ICAV. 

Principal Activities

$�GHWDLOHG�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�)XQGV¶�DFWLYLWLHV�IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHU�
Report on page 6 to 9. 

Directors' Responsibilities Statement

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV¶�5HSRUW�DQG�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ�
and regulations. 

7KH�,&$9�$FW�UHTXLUHV�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�WR�SUHSDUH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�HDFK�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��8QGHU�WKDW�ODZ�WKH\�KDYH�HOHFWHG�WR�
SUHSDUH�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��,)56��DV�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�(8�
and applicable law.

7KH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�¿QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�)XQGV�DW�WKH�
HQG�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�DQG�RI�WKH�FKDQJHV�LQ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV�LQ�WKH�)XQGV�
IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��,Q�SUHSDULQJ�WKHVH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and 

H[SODLQHG�LQ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
• assess the Funds’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
• use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Funds or to cease operations or have no 

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV��¿QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�LQFUHDVH�LQ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV�LQ�WKH�
)XQGV�DQG�HQDEOH�WKHP�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�,&$9�$FW�DQG�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN��6XSHUYLVLRQ�DQG�
Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019. 
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Funds. In this 
regard they have entrusted the assets of the Funds to a depositary for safe-keeping. They are responsible for such internal controls 
DV�WKH\�GHWHUPLQH�LV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HQDEOH�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�
due to fraud or error, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The Directors are also responsible for preparing a 
Directors’ Report that complies with the requirements of the ICAV Act. 

/HJLVODWLRQ� LQ� WKH�5HSXEOLF� RI� ,UHODQG�JRYHUQLQJ� WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ� DQG�GLVVHPLQDWLRQ�RI�¿QDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�PD\�GL൵HU� IURP�
legislation in other jurisdictions.

5HYLHZ�RI�EXVLQHVV�DQG�IXWXUH�GHYHORSPHQWV

A review of business and future developments is included in the Background to the ICAV on pages 3 to 5 and the Investment 
Manager's Report on page 6 to 9. 

Results and Dividends

7KH�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH�RQ�SDJH����DQG�����7KH�
classes of shares in issue are 31 accumulating classes and 2 distributing share classes. There were dividends distributed for the 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG����'HFHPEHU�������'HWDLOV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�GLYLGHQGV�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH�����



GQG Global UCITS ICAV Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2021

Directors’ Report (Continued)

11

Risk management objectives and policies

7KH�PDLQ� ULVNV� DULVLQJ� IURP� WKH�)XQGV¶�¿QDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV� DUH�PDUNHW� SULFH�� IRUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\�� LQWHUHVW� UDWH�� OLTXLGLW\� DQG�
FRXQWHUSDUW\�FUHGLW�ULVNV�DV�GHWDLOHG�LQ�1RWH���WR�WKHVH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

'LUHFWRUV�ZKR�KHOG�R൶FH�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�ZKR�KHOG�R൶FH�DW�DQ\�WLPH�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�ZHUH��7RP�&RJKODQ��-LP�)LUQ��0DULH�2¶&RQQRU��0DUN�%DUNHU��
Xavier Sement and Mel Zakaluk. 

'LUHFWRUV¶�DQG�6HFUHWDU\¶V�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�,&$9�DQG�)XQGV

Mark Barker and Xavier Sement hold shares in the Funds of the ICAV, details of which are disclosed in Note 14. 

1R�RWKHU�'LUHFWRUV��ZKR�KHOG�R൶FH�DW�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG��RU�WKH�6HFUHWDU\�RU�WKHLU�FORVH�IDPLO\�PHPEHUV�KDG�DQ\�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�
WKH�6KDUHV�RU�GHEHQWXUHV�RI�WKH�,&$9�RU�LWV�)XQGV�DW�WKDW�GDWH�RU�DW�DQ\�WLPH�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��

Transactions involving Directors

2WKHU� WKDQ�DV�GLVFORVHG� LQ�1RWH���� WR� WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�� WKHUH�ZHUH�QR�FRQWUDFWV�RU�DJUHHPHQWV�RI�DQ\�VLJQL¿FDQFH� LQ�
UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�EXVLQHVV�RI�WKH�,&$9�RU�LWV�)XQGV�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�KDG�DQ\�LQWHUHVW��DV�GH¿QHG�LQ�WKH�,&$9�$FW��DW�DQ\�WLPH�
GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��

Transactions with Connected Persons

3HUVRQV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�UHODWHG�LI�RQH�SHUVRQ�KDV�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWURO�WKH�RWKHU�SDUW\�RU�H[HUFLVH�VLJQL¿FDQW�LQÀXHQFH�RYHU�
WKH�RWKHU�SHUVRQ�LQ�PDNLQJ�¿QDQFLDO�RU�RSHUDWLRQDO�GHFLVLRQV���

7KH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�8&,76�5HJXODWLRQV�UHTXLUH�LQ�H൵HFW�WKDW�DQ\�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FDUULHG�RXW�ZLWK�D�8&,76�E\�D�PDQDJHPHQW�FRPSDQ\�
or depositary to the UCITS, the delegates or sub-delegates of the management company or depositary, and any associated or 
group of such a management company, depositary, delegate or sub-delegate (“connected persons”) must be carried out as if 
negotiated at arm’s length. Transactions must be in the best interests of the Shareholders.  

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�VDWLV¿HG�WKDW�WKHUH�DUH�DUUDQJHPHQWV��HYLGHQFHG�E\�ZULWWHQ�SURFHGXUHV��LQ�SODFH��WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�REOLJDWLRQV�
set out in Regulation 43(1) of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations are applied to all transactions with connected persons, and 
DUH�VDWLV¿HG�WKDW�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�FRQQHFWHG�SHUVRQV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�FRPSOLHG�ZLWK�WKH�REOLJDWLRQV�VHW�RXW�
in Regulation 43(1) of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. 

6RIW�FRPPLVVLRQV�DQG�'LUHFWHG�%URNHUDJH�6HUYLFHV

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�VRIW�FRPPLVVLRQV�RU�GLUHFWHG�EURNHUDJH�VHUYLFH�DUUDQJHPHQWV�LQ�SODFH�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�
2021.

Accounting Records

The Directors believe that they have complied with the requirements of Sections 109 to 115 of the ICAV Act, with regard to 
keeping adequate accounting records. The Directors have appointed Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services 
(Ireland) Limited to maintain adequate accounting records. The address at which this business is located is as follows:  

Georges Court 
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin D02 R156
Ireland

Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR)

8QGHU�WKH�6XVWDLQDEOH�)LQDQFH�'LVFORVXUH�5HJXODWLRQ��6)'5���DV�QRWHG�XQGHU�$UWLFOH���RI�7D[RQRP\�5HJXODWLRQ�±�)LQDQFLDO�
3URGXFWV�4XDOLI\LQJ� XQGHU�$UWLFOH� �� RI� WKH� 6)'5�� )LQDQFLDO�0DUNHW� 3DUWLFLSDQWV�ZKR�PDQXIDFWXUH� ¿QDQFLDO� SURGXFWV�PXVW�
GLVFORVH�VSHFL¿F�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�WKHLU�DSSURDFK�WR�WKH�LQWHJUDWLRQ�RI�VXVWDLQDELOLW\�ULVNV�DQG�WKH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�DGYHUVH�
sustainability impacts.
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The investments underlying the GQG Global UCITS ICAV do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally 
sustainable economic activities. 

6LJQL¿FDQW�(YHQWV�GXULQJ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�<HDU�DQG�0DWHULDO�3ULQFLSDO�&KDQJHV�WR�WKH�3URVSHFWXV

6LJQL¿FDQW�HYHQWV�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH����RQ�SDJH�����

Subsequent Events

6XEVHTXHQW�HYHQWV�DIWHU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH����RQ�SDJH�����

For disclosure on the impact of COVID-19 please refer to analysis in Note 16.

Corporate Governance Code

Irish Funds, the association for the funds industry in Ireland, has published a corporate governance code that may be adopted 
on a voluntary basis by Irish authorised investment funds. The Board of Directors have adopted the Code, and the ICAV was in 
FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�DOO�HOHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RGH�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�

Manager

The Bridge Fund Management Limited has been appointed as the Management Company for the ICAV on 1 November 2019. 
The Management Company is responsible for monitoring the below managerial functions:

• 2SHUDWLRQDO�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�±�0RQLWRULQJ�RI�GHOHJDWHV�VR�WKDW�WKHUH�DUH�DSSURSULDWH�H൵HFWLYH�RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN�SURFHGXUHV�
in place at the delegates.

• )XQG�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�±�0RQLWRULQJ�WKURXJK�WKH�GHOHJDWHV�WKDW�WKH�)XQGV�ULVNV�DUH�LGHQWL¿HG�DQG�PDQDJHG�
• ,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHPHQW�±�0RQLWRULQJ�WKDW�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHU�LV�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYHG�LQYHVWPHQW�DSSURDFK�

and on an ongoing basis monitoring the investment process and performance.
• &DSLWDO� DQG� )LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW� ±�0RQLWRUV� WKDW� UHOHYDQW� DFFRXQWLQJ� UHFRUGV� DUH� SURSHUO\� PDLQWDLQHG� DQG� WKDW� WKH�

assets and liabilities of the Funds are valued appropriately. The Management Company also ensures that the Management 
Company is appropriately capitalised at all times.

• 5HJXODWRU\�&RPSOLDQFH�±�0RQLWRUV�WKDW�WKH�)XQGV�DUH�LQFRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�UHJXODWRU\�REOLJDWLRQV�
• 'LVWULEXWLRQ�±�0RQLWRUV�WKH�DSSURYHG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�VWUDWHJ\�DQG�SDWWHUQV�RI�GLVWULEXWLRQ�DV�ZHOO�DV�DQ\�ORFDO�FRPSOLDQFH�LVVXHV�

as part of the Funds’ distribution process.

Employees

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�HPSOR\HHV�IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU����������'HFHPEHU�������QRQH��

6WDWHPHQW�RI�5HOHYDQW�$XGLW�,QIRUPDWLRQ

The following applies in the case of each person who was a Director of the Company, as disclosed on page 1, at the time this 
report is approved: 

(a) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s statutory auditors are unaware; 
and 

(b) the Director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself or herself aware 
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s statutory auditors are aware of that information (‘all steps’ 
means that a Director has made such enquiries of his or her fellow Directors (if any) and of the company’s statutory auditors for 
that purpose, and, taken such other steps (if any) for that purpose).

Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) (Continued)
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Auditors

The independent auditors, KPMG, Chartered Accountants, have been re-appointed and expressed their willingness to continue 
LQ�R൶FH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�,&$9�$FWV������DQG�������

    
6LJQHG�RQ�%HKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV      
       
       
       
Director  Director  
    

29 April 2022

EF106
Stamp
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We, Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited, appointed Depositary to GQG Global UCITS ICAV (the “ICAV”) 
SURYLGH� WKLV� UHSRUW� VROHO\� LQ� IDYRXU� RI� WKH� VKDUHKROGHUV� RI� WKH� ,&$9� IRU� WKH� ¿QDQFLDO� \HDU� HQGHG� 31 December 2021 (the 
“Annual Accounting Period”). This report is provided in accordance with the European Communities (Undertakings for 
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (SI No 352 of 2011), as amended (the “Regulations”), which 
implemented Directive 2009/65/EU into Irish Law. We do not, in the provision of this report, accept nor assume responsibility 
for any other purpose or person to whom this report is shown.  

In accordance with our Depositary obligation as provided for under the Regulations, we have enquired into the conduct of the 
ICAV for this Annual Accounting Period and we hereby report thereon to the shareholders of the ICAV as follows;  

We are of the opinion that the ICAV has been managed during the Annual Accounting Period, in all material respects:

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the ICAV by the constitutional
documents and by the Regulations; and

(ii) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional documents and the Regulations.

)RU�DQG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI��
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited 
Georges Court  
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin D02 R156

29 April 2022



 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GQG 
PARTNERS EMERGING MARKETS EQUITY FUND, GQG PARTNERS GLOBAL 
EQUITY FUND AND GQG PARTNERS U.S. EQUITY FUND  
 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 
 
Opinion 

 
We have audited the financial statements of GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund, GQG 
Partners Global Equity Fund and GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund (‘the Sub-Funds’) for the 
year/period ended 31 December 2021 set out on pages 18 to 71, which comprise the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Preference Shares, Statement of Cash Flows and related 
notes, including the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 1. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is Irish Law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union. 
 
In our opinion:  

 the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial 
position of the Sub-Funds as at 31 December 2021 and of its increase in net assets 
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares for the year/period then 
ended;  

  the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as 
adopted by the European Union; and  

 the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles Acts 2015 and 2020 
and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) 
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019.  

  
 
Basis for opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs 
(Ireland)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Sub-Funds in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing 
and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
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PARTNERS EMERGING MARKETS EQUITY FUND, GQG PARTNERS GLOBAL 
EQUITY FUND AND GQG PARTNERS U.S. EQUITY FUND (continued) 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
 
In auditing the financial statement of the Sub-Funds’ we have concluded that the directors’ use of 
the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 
appropriate.     
                                                                                                                                                           
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Sub-
Funds’ ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of this report. 
  
 
Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together 
with the financial statements. The other information comprises the information included in 
Organisation, Background to the ICAV, Investment Manager’s Report, Directors’ Report, Annual 
Depositary’s Report to Shareholders, Schedule of Total Expense Ratios, Performance Data, 
Schedule of Investments, Schedule of Portfolio Changes and Appendix. The financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon do not comprise part of the other information. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an 
audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on 
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work undertaken during 
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the other information. 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles 
Acts 2015 and 2020 

 
In our opinion, the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial 
statements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

The Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles Acts 2015 and 2020 requires us to report to you, 
if in our opinion, the disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.  



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GQG 
PARTNERS EMERGING MARKETS EQUITY FUND, GQG PARTNERS GLOBAL 
EQUITY FUND AND GQG PARTNERS U.S. EQUITY FUND (continued) 
 
Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use 

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 10, the 
directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements including being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; assessing the Sub-fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless they either intend to liquidate the Sub-fund’s or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.   
 
A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on IAASA’s website at 
http://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/Auditing-standards/International-Standards-on-Auditing-for-use-
in-Ire/Description-of-the-auditor-s-responsibilities-for.  

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities 

 
Our report is made solely to the shareholders of the Sub-Funds as a body, in accordance with the 
Section 120 of the Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles Act 2015. Our audit work has 
been undertaken so that we might state to the Sub-Funds’ shareholders those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Sub-Funds 
and the Sub-Funds’ shareholders, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions 
we have formed.  

 
                                                                                                                                     29 April 2022 

 
Cristian Reyes 
for and on behalf of  
KPMG 
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm 
1 Harbour Master Place 
IFSC 
Dublin 1 
Ireland 
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Note

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2020

Income ± ±
Dividend income 74,044,505 14,992,982
1HW��ORVVHV����JDLQV�RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV 3 (91,474,572) 433,728,777
Bank interest income 50,453 3,072

± ±
1HW�LQYHVWPHQW��ORVV����JDLQ (17,379,614) 448,724,831

± ±
Operating Expenses ± ±
Administration fees 4 (670,840) (395,037)
Audit fees 4 (30,620) (28,680)
Tax advisory services (132,590) (121,704)
Depositary fees 4 (1,490,935) (648,806)
Directors' fees 4 (50,257) (36,840)
Management Company fees 4 (361,000) (256,955)
Investment Management fees 4 (19,409,352) (10,778,559)
Transaction costs (5,249,240) (3,019,479)
Other expenses 5 (454,971) (471,842)

± ±
7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�EHIRUH�FDS (27,849,805) (15,757,902)
Expense cap reimbursement 40,801 ±

± ±
7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�DIWHU�FDS (27,809,004) (15,757,902)

± ±
1HW��ORVVHV����JDLQV�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�EHIRUH�¿QDQFH�FRVWV (45,188,618) 432,966,929

± ±
Finance costs ± ±
Bank interest expense (16,693) (53,316)
Distributions (5,309,215) ±

± ±
Tax ± ±
Withholding tax 2 (6,719,778) (2,161,318)
Capital Gains tax 2 (3,457,227) (4,819,539)
&KDQJH�LQ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�
SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV (60,691,531) 425,932,756

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�UHFRJQLVHG�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�DULVLQJ�LQ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�LQFOXGHG�DERYH��,Q�DUULYLQJ�DW�WKH�UHVXOWV�
IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��DOO�DPRXQWV�DERYH�UHODWH�WR�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV��

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Note

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2020
Income ± ±
Dividend income 29,984,524 7,156,221
1HW�JDLQV�RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV 3 180,992,868 113,452,689
Bank interest income 1,944 14,395

± ±
Net investment gain 210,979,336 120,623,305

± ±
Operating Expenses ± ±
Administration fees 4 (359,814) (224,917)
Audit fees 4 (34,124) (24,768)
Tax advisory services (31,974) (57,147)
Depositary fees 4 (415,644) (248,787)
Directors' fees 4 (28,797) (20,547)
Management Company fees 4 (205,475) (160,894)
Investment Management fees 4 (7,533,001) (4,588,227)
Transaction costs (1,200,207) (771,012)
Other expenses 5 (272,536) (275,357)

± ±
7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�EHIRUH�FDS (10,081,572) (6,371,656)
Expense cap reimbursement 142,560 289,548

± ±
7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�DIWHU�FDS (9,939,012) (6,082,108)

± ±
1HW�JDLQV�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�EHIRUH�¿QDQFH�FRVWV 201,040,324 114,541,197

± ±
Finance costs ± ±
Bank interest expense (720) (48,015)

± ±
Tax ± ±
Withholding tax 2 (4,553,020) (1,107,984)
&KDQJH�LQ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�
SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV 196,486,584 113,385,198

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�UHFRJQLVHG�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�DULVLQJ�LQ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�LQFOXGHG�DERYH��,Q�DUULYLQJ�DW�WKH�UHVXOWV�
IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��DOO�DPRXQWV�DERYH�UHODWH�WR�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV��

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����
 - 

Note

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Period ended 

31 December 2021*
Income ±
Dividend income 1,018,273
1HW�JDLQV�RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV 3 8,426,315

±
Net investment gain 9,444,588

±
Operating Expenses ±
Administration fees 4 (59,079)
Audit fees 4 (24,780)
Tax advisory services (9,078)
Depositary fees 4 (46,640)
Directors' fees 4 (2,527)
Management Company fees 4 (13,900)
Investment Management fees 4 (300,828)
Transaction costs (70,724)
Other expenses 5 (112,145)

±
7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�EHIRUH�FDS (639,701)
Expense cap reimbursement 151,591

±
7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�DIWHU�FDS (488,110)

±
1HW�JDLQV�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�EHIRUH�¿QDQFH�FRVWV 8,956,478

±
Finance costs ±
Bank interest expense (30,717)

±
Tax ±
Withholding tax 2 (286,790)
&KDQJH�LQ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV�
UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV 8,638,971

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives available.

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�UHFRJQLVHG�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�DULVLQJ�LQ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�LQFOXGHG�DERYH��,Q�DUULYLQJ�DW�WKH�UHVXOWV�
IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG��DOO�DPRXQWV�DERYH�UHODWH�WR�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV��

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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As at 31 December 2021

Note

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Assets ± ±
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV� – –
Transferable Securities 9 2,307,518,969 1,708,192,832
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�
Cash and cash equivalents 8 77,600,008 128,181,482
Dividends receivables 4,687,173 1,501,228
Subscriptions receivable 4,475,889 4,199,855
Securities sold receivable ± 22,225,164
Other receivables 7 6,922 17,424

± ±
Total assets 2,394,288,961 1,864,317,985

± ±
Liabilities ± ±
Financial liabilities measure at amortised cost
Administration fees payable 4 73,997 99,596
Audit and tax fees payable 110,571 72,954
Capital gains tax payable 2 11,071,713 7,601,003
Depositary fees payable 4 138,337 131,100
Management Company fees payable 4 63,963 26,494
Investment Management fees payable 4 1,805,091 1,279,993
Securities purchased payable 17,887,347 97,699,681
Redemptions payable 1,438,130 321,561
Distributions payable 3,619,125 ±
Other payables and accrued expenses 6 119,802 425,498

± ±
7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV��H[FOXGLQJ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI� 
redeemable participating shares) 36,328,076 107,657,880

– –
1HW�$VVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ� 
shares 13 2,357,960,885 1,756,660,105

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

6LJQHG�RQ�%HKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV

Director Director

29 April 2022

EF106
Stamp
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Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Note

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Assets ± ±
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV� – –
Transferable Securities 9 1,272,963,745 1,029,028,373
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�
Cash and cash equivalents 8 43,550,427 58,179,816
Dividends receivables 1,067,232 160,030
Subscriptions receivable 9,382,841 2,434,288
Securities sold receivable 5,341,052 6,381,055
Other receivables 7 12,590 1,370

± ±
Total assets 1,332,317,887 1,096,184,932

± ±
Liabilities ± ±
Financial liabilities measure at amortised cost
Administration fees payable 4 40,048 55,042
Audit and tax fees payable 56,319 49,879
Depositary fees payable 4 33,012 46,837
Management Company fees payable 4 35,858 16,784
Investment Management fees payable 4 682,198 542,165
Securities purchased payable 7,513,421 34,524,257
Redemptions payable ± 9,809,689
Other payables and accrued expenses 6 91,520 136,655

± ±
7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV��H[FOXGLQJ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI� 
redeemable participating shares) 8,452,376 45,181,308

– –
1HW�$VVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ� 
shares 13 1,323,865,511 1,051,003,624

    
7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

    
   

6LJQHG�RQ�%HKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV     
      
      
Director Director  
   

29 April 2022

 April 2020

 

 

EF106
Stamp
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Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Note

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021*
Assets ±
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV� –
Transferable Securities 9 503,318,594
Derivative Financial Instruments 9 23
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�
Cash and cash equivalents 8 12,027,320
Dividends receivables 81,723
Subscriptions receivable 1,466,067
Other receivables 7 7,722

±
Total assets 516,901,449

±
Liabilities ±
)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�PHDVXUH�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�ORVV� (5,431)
Derivative Financial Instruments 9 5,431
Financial liabilities measure at amortised cost
Administration fees payable 4 13,934
Audit and tax fees payable 33,478
Depositary fees payable 4 4,769
Directors' fees payable 4 319
Management Company fees payable 4 7,447
Investment Management fees payable 4 115,942
Securities purchased payable 2,107,791
Redemptions payable 93,040
Other payables and accrued expenses 6 30,959

±
7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV��H[FOXGLQJ�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�
redeemable participating shares) 2,413,110

–
1HW�$VVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�
shares 13 514,488,339

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives available.

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

6LJQHG�RQ�%HKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV

Director Director

29 April 2022

EF106
Stamp
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2020

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 
DW�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 1,756,660,105 876,031,273

± ±
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating  
shares resulting from operations (60,691,531) 425,932,756
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares during the  
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 940,553,833 734,040,793
Payments of redemptions of redeemable participating shares during the 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU (278,561,522) (279,344,717)

± ±
1HW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV� 
DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 2,357,960,885 1,756,660,105

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (Continued)

)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2020

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 
DW�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 1,051,003,624 434,643,660

± ±
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating  
shares resulting from operations 196,486,584 113,385,198
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares during the  
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 230,407,346 779,493,591
Payments of redemptions of redeemable participating shares during the 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU (154,032,043) (276,518,825)

± ±
1HW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV� 
DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 1,323,865,511 1,051,003,624

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Period ended 

31 December 2021*

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 
DW�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG ±

±
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating  
shares resulting from operations 8,638,971
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares during the  
¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG 514,907,019
Payments of redemptions of redeemable participating shares during the 
¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG (9,057,651)

±
1HW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV�
DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG 514,488,339

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives available.

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Note

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2020

&DVK�ÀRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ± ±
± ±

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares resulting from operations (60,691,531) 425,932,756

± ±
$GMXVWPHQWV�IRU� ± ±
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (3,175,443) 105,538
Increase in payables 7,365,961 5,564,818

,QFUHDVH�LQ�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�
loss (656,913,307) (774,834,449)

± ±
1HW�FDVK�RXWÀRZ�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV (713,414,320) (343,231,337)

± ±
&DVK�ÀRZV�IURP�¿QDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ± ±
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 918,393,584 731,834,196
Payments of redemptions of redeemable participating shares (255,560,738) (281,682,557)

± ±
&DVK�LQÀRZ�IURP�¿QDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV 662,832,846 450,151,639

± ±
1HW��GHFUHDVH��LQFUHDVH�LQ�FDVK�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU (50,581,474) 106,920,302
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 8 128,181,482 21,261,180

± ±
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 8 77,600,008 128,181,482

6XSSOHPHQWDU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ USD USD
Bank interest received 50,453 3,073
Bank interest paid (15,363) (55,597)
Dividends received 70,858,560 15,114,855
Dividends paid (1,690,090) -

$Q\�GL൵HUHQFHV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SURFHHGV�IURP�LVVXH�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�XQLWV�DQG�SD\PHQWV�IURP�UHGHPSWLRQ�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�XQLWV�SHU�
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Net Assets are due to subscriptions receivable/redemptions payable at 
year end and non-cash subscriptions and redemptions during the year.

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Note

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2020
&DVK�ÀRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ± ±

± ±
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares resulting from operations 196,486,584 113,385,198

± ±
$GMXVWPHQWV�IRU� ± ±
Increase in receivables (918,422) (81,416)
Increase in payables 91,593 464,940

,QFUHDVH�LQ�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�
loss (269,906,205) (402,455,225)

± ±
1HW�FDVK�RXWÀRZ�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV (74,246,450) (288,686,503)

± ±
&DVK�ÀRZV�IURP�¿QDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ± ±
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 223,453,554 607,050,932
Payments of redemptions of redeemable participating shares (163,836,493) (266,719,045)

± ±
&DVK�LQÀRZ�IURP�¿QDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV 59,617,061 340,331,887

± ±
1HW��GHFUHDVH��LQFUHDVH�LQ�FDVK�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU (14,629,389) 51,645,384
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 8 58,179,816 6,534,432

± ±
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU 8 43,550,427 58,179,816

6XSSOHPHQWDU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ USD USD
Bank interest received 1,944 15,339
Bank interest paid (1,406) (45,258)
Dividends received 29,077,322 7,044,192

$Q\�GL൵HUHQFHV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SURFHHGV�IURP�LVVXH�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�XQLWV�DQG�SD\PHQWV�IURP�UHGHPSWLRQ�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�XQLWV�SHU�
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Net Assets are due to subscriptions receivable/redemptions payable at 
year end and non-cash subscriptions and redemptions during the year.

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�


 7KH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZ�H[FOXGHV�QRQ�FDVK�WUDQVDFWLRQV�UHODWLQJ�WR�6XEVFULSWLRQV�VHWWOHG�E\�ZD\�RI�D�WUDQVIHU�RI�¿QDQFLDO
assets with a value of USDNil (31 December 2020: USD170,013,827).
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Note

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
Financial Period ended 

31 December 2021*
&DVK�ÀRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ±

±
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares resulting from operations 8,638,971

±
$GMXVWPHQWV�IRU� ±
Increase in receivables (89,445)
Increase in payables 206,848

,QFUHDVH�LQ�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV (501,205,395)
±

1HW�FDVK�RXWÀRZ�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV (492,449,021)
±

&DVK�ÀRZV�IURP�¿QDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ±
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 513,199,591
Payments of redemptions of redeemable participating shares (8,723,250)

±
&DVK�LQÀRZ�IURP�¿QDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV 504,476,341

±
1HW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�FDVK�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG 12,027,320
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG 8 ±

±
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG 8 12,027,320

6XSSOHPHQWDU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ USD
Bank interest paid (31,197)
Dividends received 936,550

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives available.

$Q\�GL൵HUHQFHV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SURFHHGV�IURP�LVVXH�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�XQLWV�DQG�SD\PHQWV�IURP�UHGHPSWLRQ�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�XQLWV�SHU�
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Net Assets are due to subscriptions receivable/redemptions payable at 
year end and non-cash subscriptions and redemptions during the year.

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

�� 6LJQL¿FDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV

D� %DVLV�RI�3UHSDUDWLRQ

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�RSWHG� WR�SUHSDUH�VHSDUDWH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� IRU� WKH�)XQGV� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKH�,ULVK�&ROOHFWLYH�
$VVHW�PDQDJHPHQW�9HKLFOHV�$FW������DQG�������$Q\�UHIHUHQFH�KHUHDIWHU�WR�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZLOO�PHDQ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�
statements of the Funds of the ICAV. 

7KH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�)XQGV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�
(“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(“IASB”), and Irish statute comprising the Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles Act 2015 and 2020 and pursuant to the 
European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011(as amended) 
(“the UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings 
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations"). 

7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�,)56�UHTXLUHV�WKH�XVH�RI�FHUWDLQ�FULWLFDO�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�
WKDW�D൵HFW�WKH�UHSRUWHG�DPRXQWV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�WKH�UHSRUWHG�DPRXQWV�RI�
UHYHQXHV�DQG�H[SHQVHV�GXULQJ�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG��$FWXDO�UHVXOWV�XOWLPDWHO\�PD\�GL൵HU�IURP�WKRVH�HVWLPDWHV�

All references to Net Assets throughout this document refer to Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating 
Shares, unless otherwise stated. 

7KH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�DQG�XQGHU�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�FRQYHQWLRQ�H[FHSW�IRU�
¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�WKDW�KDYH�EHHQ�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��

7KH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�LQ�86�'ROODU�DQG�URXQGHG�WR�WKH�QHDUHVW�86�'ROODU��

�L� 8VH�RI�(VWLPDWHV�DQG�-XGJHPHQWV

7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�,)56�UHTXLUHV�WKH�)XQG�WR�PDNH�XVH�RI�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�
WKDW�D൵HFW�WKH�UHSRUWHG�DPRXQWV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�WKH�UHSRUWHG�DPRXQWV�RI�
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge 
RI� WKH�DPRXQW��HYHQW�RU�DFWLRQV��DFWXDO� UHVXOWV�XOWLPDWHO\�PD\�GL൵HU� IURP�WKRVH�HVWLPDWHV��7KH�DUHDV� LQYROYLQJ�D�KLJKHU�
GHJUHH�RI�MXGJHPHQW�RU�FRPSOH[LW\�RU�DUHDV�ZKHUH�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�VLJQL¿FDQW�WR�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�
GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH����'HWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�RI�WKH�)XQGV�LV�WKH�PDLQ�HVWLPDWH�IRU�WKH�)XQGV��
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.  

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
LQ� WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU� LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�HVWLPDWH� LV�UHYLVHG�LI� WKH�UHYLVLRQ�D൵HFWV�RQO\� WKDW�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�RU� LQ� WKH�\HDU�RI� WKH�
UHYLVLRQ�DQG�IXWXUH�\HDUV�LI�WKH�UHYLVLRQ�D൵HFWV�ERWK�FXUUHQW�DQG�IXWXUH�\HDUV��

The Directors have determined that the key judgement for the Funds is considered to be the assessment of each Fund’s 
functional currency. This judgement has been detail in note 1(i).

(ii) Accounting Standards

7KHVH� ¿QDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� KDYH� EHHQ� SUHSDUHG� WR� H[LVWLQJ� VWDQGDUGV� DQG� DPHQGPHQWV� WR� H[LVWLQJ� VWDQGDUGV� H൵HFWLYH� ��
January 2021.

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards have been issued to date and are not yet 
H൵HFWLYH�IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�)XQG�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�DQG�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�QRU�HDUO\�DGRSWHG�LQ�SUHSDULQJ�
WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

Standard Narrative (൵HFWLYH�GDWH

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1st January 2022
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 2018-2020 Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 1st January 2022
16 and IAS 41
*Annual periods beginning on or after
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of the new standards, interpretations and amendments that were in issue at the date 
RI�DXWKRUL]DWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��EXW�QRW�\HW�H൵HFWLYH��ZLOO�KDYH�QR�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

E��)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DQG�/LDELOLWLHV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV

�L��&ODVVL¿FDWLRQ��5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�'HUHFRJQLWLRQ

7KH�)XQGV�UHFRJQLVH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�ZKHQ�DOO�VLJQL¿FDQW�ULJKWV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WKH�EHQH¿WV�IURP�WKH�
DVVHWV�DQG�WKH�H[SRVXUH�WR�WKH�ULVNV�LQKHUHQW�LQ�WKRVH�EHQH¿WV�DUH�WUDQVIHUUHG�WR�WKH�)XQGV��7KH�)XQGV�GHUHFRJQLVH�¿QDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�DQG�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�ZKHQ�DOO�VXFK�EHQH¿WV�DQG�ULVNV�DUH�WUDQVIHUUHG�IURP�WKH�)XQGV�

2Q�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��WKH�)XQGV�FODVVLI\�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�RU�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�
(“FVTPL”).

$�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�RQO\�LI�ERWK�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FULWHULD�DUH�PHW�

 - LW�LV�KHOG�ZLWKLQ�D�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�ZKRVH�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�KROG�DVVHWV�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ÀRZV��DQG
 - LWV�FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�JLYH�ULVH�RQ�VSHFL¿HG�GDWHV�WR�FDVK�ÀRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�

Business model assessment

,Q�PDNLQJ�DQ�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�WKH�REMHFWLYH�RI�WKH�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�LQ�ZKLFK�D�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�LV�KHOG��WKH�)XQGV�FRQVLGHUV�DOO�RI�
the relevant information about how the business is managed, including: 

 - the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the investment 
VWUDWHJ\� IRFXVHV� RQ� HDUQLQJ� FRQWUDFWXDO� LQWHUHVW� LQFRPH��PDLQWDLQLQJ� D� SDUWLFXODU� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� SUR¿OH��PDWFKLQJ� WKH�
GXUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WR�WKH�GXUDWLRQ�RI�DQ\�UHODWHG�OLDELOLWLHV�RU�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�RXWÀRZV�RU�UHDOLVLQJ�FDVK�ÀRZV�
through the sale of the assets;

 - how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Funds’ management;
 - WKH�ULVNV�WKDW�D൵HFW�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO��DQG�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�KHOG�ZLWKLQ�WKDW�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO��DQG�

how those risks are managed;
 - how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed 

RU�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ÀRZV�FROOHFWHG��DQG
 - WKH�IUHTXHQF\��YROXPH�DQG�WLPLQJ�RI�VDOHV�RI�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LQ�SULRU�SHULRGV��WKH�UHDVRQV�IRU�VXFK�VDOHV�DQG�H[SHFWDWLRQV�

about future sales activity.

7UDQVIHUV�RI�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WR�WKLUG�SDUWLHV�LQ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�WKDW�GR�QRW�TXDOLI\�IRU�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ�DUH�QRW�FRQVLGHUHG�VDOHV�IRU�
this purpose, consistent with the Funds’ continuing recognition of the assets.

The ICAV has determined that it has two business models.

 - Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, dividends receivables, subscriptions receivable, 
VHFXULWLHV�VROG�UHFHLYDEOH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV��7KHVH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�KHOG�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ÀRZV�

 - 2WKHU�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO��WKLV�LQFOXGHV�HTXLW\�LQYHVWPHQWV��3�QRWHV�DQG�GHULYDWLYHV��7KHVH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�PDQDJHG�DQG�
their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�FODVVL¿HG�DV�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�LQFOXGH�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV��GLYLGHQGV�UHFHLYDEOHV��VXEVFULSWLRQV�
receivable, securities sold receivable and other assets. 

)LQDQFLDO� OLDELOLWLHV� WKDW�DUH�FODVVL¿HG�DV�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW� LQFOXGH�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�IHHV�SD\DEOH��DXGLW�DQG�WD[�IHHV�SD\DEOH��
capital gains tax payable, depositary fees payable, management company fees payable, investment management fees 
payable, securities purchased payable, redemptions payable and other payables. 

��� 6LJQL¿FDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV��&RQWLQXHG�

D��%DVLV�RI�3UHSDUDWLRQ��&RQWLQXHG�

(ii) Accounting Standards (continued)
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Financial liabilities arising from the Redeemable Participating Shares issued by the Funds are carried at the redemption 
amount representing the Investors' right to a residual interest in the Funds’ Net Assets. 

$�UHJXODU�SXUFKDVH�RI�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�XVLQJ�WUDGH�GDWH�DFFRXQWLQJ��)URP�WKLV�GDWH��DQ\�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV��DULVLQJ�
IURP�FKDQJHV�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�RU�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV��DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�
Income. 

(ii) Measurement

)LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�LQLWLDOO\�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��7UDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV�RQ�¿QDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�DQG�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�
OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�RQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH��

6XEVHTXHQW�WR�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��DOO�LQVWUXPHQWV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�ZLWK�
changes in their fair value recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(iii) Fair Value Measurement Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
PDUNHW� SDUWLFLSDQWV� DW� WKH�PHDVXUHPHQW� GDWH��7KH� IDLU� YDOXH� RI� ¿QDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG� OLDELOLWLHV� WUDGHG� LQ� DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�
(such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the 
reporting date. 

Securities listed on several Recognised Exchanges shall be valued on the basis of the closing mid-market price or (if this 
is not available) last available quoted bid-price as the Valuation Point for the relevant Valuation Day on the stock exchange 
or market which in the opinion of the Funds or its delegate constitutes the main market for such assets for the foregoing 
purposes. 

Securities which are not listed or which are listed but in respect of which prices are not available or in respect of which the 
closing mid-market price or last available price does not in the opinion of the Directors of the ICAV or its delegate represent 
fair market value in the relevant market as at the Valuation Point for the relevant Valuation Day shall be valued at their 
probable realisation value estimated with care and in good faith by (i) the Funds or the External Valuer or (ii) a competent 
SHUVRQ��¿UP�RU�FRUSRUDWLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHU��VHOHFWHG�E\�WKH�)XQGV��,Q�RUGHU�WR�PLQLPL]H�FRQÀLFWV��WKH�
representatives on the committee may be persons not actively managing the Funds. 

Fair values for unquoted equity investments are estimated, if possible, using applicable price/earnings ratios for similar listed 
FRPSDQLHV�DGMXVWHG�WR�UHÀHFW�WKH�VSHFL¿F�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�RI�WKH�LVVXHU��5HDOLVHG�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�RQ�LQYHVWPHQW�GLVSRVDOV�DUH�
calculated using the average cost method. 

(iv) Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

Forward foreign currency transactions are measured based on the closing forward contract rates on the relevant foreign 
exchange market on a daily basis. Realised gains and losses and movements in unrealised gains and losses are reported in 
the Funds’ Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(v) Impairment

7KH�)XQGV�UHFRJQLVH�ORVV�DOORZDQFHV�IRU�([SHFWHG�&UHGLW�/RVV��³(&/V´��RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��

��� 6LJQL¿FDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV��&RQWLQXHG�

E��)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DQG�/LDELOLWLHV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV��&RQWLQXHG�

�L��&ODVVL¿FDWLRQ��5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�'HUHFRJQLWLRQ��FRQWLQXHG�

Business model assessment (Continued)
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

The Funds measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 
12-month ECLs:

 - ¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�KDYH�ORZ�FUHGLW�ULVN�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��DQG
 - RWKHU�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�IRU�ZKLFK�FUHGLW�ULVN��L�H��WKH�ULVN�RI�GHIDXOW�RFFXUULQJ�RYHU�WKH�H[SHFWHG�OLIH�RI�WKH�DVVHW��KDV�QRW�

LQFUHDVHG�VLJQL¿FDQWO\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�

:KHQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�ZKHWKHU�WKH�FUHGLW�ULVN�RI�D�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�KDV�LQFUHDVHG�VLJQL¿FDQWO\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�ZKHQ�
estimating ECLs, the Funds consider reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue 
FRVW� RU� H൵RUW�� 7KLV� LQFOXGHV� ERWK� TXDQWLWDWLYH� DQG� TXDOLWDWLYH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG� DQDO\VLV�� EDVHG� RQ� WKH� )XQGV¶� KLVWRULFDO�
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information. 

7KH�)XQGV�DVVXPH�WKDW�WKH�FUHGLW�ULVN�RQ�D�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�KDV�LQFUHDVHG�VLJQL¿FDQWO\�LI�LW�LV�PRUH�WKDQ����GD\V�SDVW�GXH��

7KH�)XQGV�FRQVLGHU�D�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�WR�EH�LQ�GHIDXOW�ZKHQ�

 - the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Funds in full, without recourse by the Funds to actions such 
as realising security (if any is held); or

 - WKH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�LV�PRUH�WKDQ����GD\V�SDVW�GXH�

7KH�)XQGV�FRQVLGHU�D�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�WR�KDYH�ORZ�FUHGLW�ULVN�ZKHQ�WKH�FUHGLW�UDWLQJ�RI�WKH�FRXQWHUSDUW\�LV�HTXLYDOHQW�WR�WKH�
JOREDOO\�XQGHUVWRRG�GH¿QLWLRQ�RI�
LQYHVWPHQW�JUDGH
��

/LIHWLPH�(&/V�DUH�WKH�(&/V�WKDW�UHVXOW�IURP�DOO�SRVVLEOH�GHIDXOW�HYHQWV�RYHU�WKH�H[SHFWHG�OLIH�RI�D�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW��

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the 
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Fund is exposed 
to credit risk. 

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash 
VKRUWIDOOV��L�H��WKH�GL൵HUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�FDVK�ÀRZV�GXH�WR�WKH�HQWLW\�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DQG�WKH�FDVK�ÀRZV�WKDW�
the Funds expect to receive). 

(&/V�DUH�GLVFRXQWHG�DW�WKH�H൵HFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW��

3UHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�DOORZDQFH�IRU�(&/V�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�¿QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ

/RVV�DOORZDQFHV�IRU�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�DUH�GHGXFWHG�IURP�WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�DVVHWV�

�YL��2൵VHWWLQJ�)LQDQFLDO�,QVWUXPHQWV

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�R൵VHW�DQG�WKH�QHW�DPRXQW�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ�ZKHUH�WKHUH�LV�
D�OHJDOO\�HQIRUFHDEOH�ULJKW�WR�VHW�R൵�WKH�UHFRJQLVHG�DPRXQWV�DQG�WKHUH�LV�DQ�LQWHQWLRQ�WR�VHWWOH�RQ�D�QHW�EDVLV��RU�UHDOLVH�WKH�
DVVHW�DQG�VHWWOH�WKH�OLDELOLW\�VLPXOWDQHRXVO\��'XULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��WKHUH�ZHUH�QR�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV�VXEMHFW�WR�
Master Netting Agreements in place. 

c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances held at banks. 

��� 6LJQL¿FDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV��&RQWLQXHG�

E��)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DQG�/LDELOLWLHV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV��&RQWLQXHG�

(v) Impairment (continued)
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d) Transaction Costs

7UDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV�DUH�LQFUHPHQWDO�FRVWV�WKDW�DUH�GLUHFWO\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ��LVVXH�RU�GLVSRVDO�RI�D�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHW�
or liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed 
RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW��

e) Income and Expense

'LYLGHQG�LQFRPH�RQ�ORQJ�SRVLWLRQV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV� LQFRPH�RQ�WKH�GDWH� WKH�VHFXULWLHV�DUH�¿UVW�TXRWHG�DV�³H[�GLYLGHQG´��
Income is shown gross of any non-recoverable withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in the Statement of 
&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH��DQG�QHW�RI�DQ\�WD[�FUHGLWV��,QWHUHVW�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVH�DUH�UHFRUGHG�RQ�DQ�H൵HFWLYH�\LHOG�EDVLV��
Other income and expense items are recorded on an accruals basis. 

I��1HW�*DLQV��/RVVHV��RQ�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV

1HW�JDLQV��ORVVHV��RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�LQFOXGH�DOO�UHDOLVHG�DQG�XQUHDOLVHG�IDLU�YDOXH�FKDQJHV�
DQG�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�GL൵HUHQFHV�EXW�H[FOXGHV�LQWHUHVW�DQG�GLYLGHQG�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVHV��7KH�)XQGV�XVH�WKH�DYHUDJH�FRVW�
PHWKRG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�UHDOLVHG�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV��1HW�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�QHW�JDLQV�
RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV��LQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH��

g) Taxation

Dividend and interest income or capital gains received by the Funds may be subject to withholding and other taxes imposed 
in the country of origin. Investment income or capital gains are recorded gross of such taxes and the corresponding tax is 
recognised as a tax expense.

h) Redeemable Participating Shares

7KH�)XQGV�FODVVLI\�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�LVVXHG�DV�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�RU�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�VXEVWDQFH�
of the contractual terms of the instrument. 

All redeemable participating shares issued by the Funds provide the investors with the right to require redemption for cash 
at the value proportionate to the investor’s share in the Funds’ net assets at the redemption date. In accordance with IAS 32 
VXFK�LQVWUXPHQWV�JLYH�ULVH�WR�D�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�IRU�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�UHGHPSWLRQ�DPRXQW�DQG�KDYH�WKHUHIRUH�EHHQ�
FODVVL¿HG�DQG�SUHVHQWHG�DV�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�LQ�WKH�)XQGV¶�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

i) Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Translations

7KH�IXQFWLRQDO�FXUUHQF\�RI� WKH�)XQGV� LV�86�'ROODU��7KH�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�GHWHUPLQHG�WKDW� WKLV� UHÀHFWV� WKH�)XQGV¶�SULPDU\�
economic environment, as the majority of the Funds’ Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 
are denominated in US Dollar. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollar are translated into US Dollar at the closing 
UDWHV� RI� H[FKDQJH� DW� HDFK� ¿QDQFLDO� \HDU� HQG�� 7UDQVDFWLRQV� GXULQJ� WKH� ¿QDQFLDO� \HDU�� LQFOXGLQJ� SXUFKDVHV� DQG� VDOHV� RI�
securities, income and expenses, are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign 
FXUUHQF\�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�QHW�JDLQV�RQ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV��LQ�
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2. Taxation

7KH� ,&$9� LV� DQ� LQYHVWPHQW�XQGHUWDNLQJ� DV�GH¿QHG� LQ�6HFWLRQ����%�RI� WKH�7D[HV�&RQVROLGDWLRQ�$FW������� DV� DPHQGHG�
(“TCA”). The ICAV and its Funds will not be liable to Irish tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the 
occurrence of a chargeable event.

Generally a chargeable event arises on any distribution, redemption, repurchase, cancellation, transfer of shares or on the 
ending of a “Relevant Period”. A “Relevant Period” being an eight year period beginning with the acquisition of the shares 
by the Shareholder and each subsequent period of eight years beginning immediately after the preceding Relevant Period.

��� 6LJQL¿FDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV��&RQWLQXHG�
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A gain on a chargeable event does not arise in respect of:

i) A shareholder who is not an Irish resident and not ordinarily resident in Ireland at the time of the chargeable event 
provided the necessary signed statutory declarations are held by the ICAV and its Funds; or

ii) Certain exempted Irish resident investors who have provided the ICAV and its Funds with the necessary signed statutory 
declaration; or

iii) Any transactions in relation to shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the Revenue 
Commissioners of Ireland; or

iv) An exchange of shares representing one Fund for another Fund of the ICAV; or
v) An exchange of shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the ICAV with another ICAV; or
vi) Certain exchanges of shares between spouses and former spouses.

In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the ICAV and its Funds will be liable to Irish tax on the occurrence of a 
FKDUJHDEOH�HYHQW��7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�FKDUJHDEOH�HYHQWV�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��

Capital gains, dividends, and interest received by the Funds may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country of 
origin and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Funds or its shareholders.

��� 1HW�*DLQV��/RVVHV��RQ�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DQG�/LDELOLWLHV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2021 
USD

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
Financial Year ended 

31 December 2020 
USD

Realised gains on investments 125,413,032 49,918,221
Realised gains/(losses) on forward currency contracts 1,516,144 (1,265,401)
Realised losses on currencies (3,852,945) (536,951)
Realised gains on currencies ± 732,334
Movement in net unrealised (losses)/gains on investments (214,572,668) 384,951,708
Unrealised gains on currency 109,973 19,294
Unrealised losses on currency (88,108) (90,428)

(91,474,572) 433,728,777

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2021 

USD

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund 

Financial Year ended 
31 December 2020 

USD

Realised gains on investments 144,398,106 16,270,491
Realised gains on forward currency contracts 143,198 1,459,763
Realised losses on currencies (700,420) (1,914,952)
Realised gains on currencies ± 169,753
Movement in net unrealised gains on investments 37,144,488 97,474,637
Unrealised (losses)/gains on currency (45,232) 30,075
Unrealised gains/(losses) on currency 52,728 (37,078)

180,992,868 113,452,689

2. Taxation (Continued)
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GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

Financial Period ended 
31 December 2021* 

USD

Realised losses on investments (6,415,612)
Realised gains on forward currency contracts 4,468
Realised gains on currencies 101,748
Movement in net unrealised gains on investments 14,736,128
Unrealised gains on currency 5,471
Unrealised losses on currency (5,888)

8,426,315

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

4. Fees

Management Company Fees

The Funds will pay to the Manager an annual management fee which will be payable monthly in arrears at the rate of:

�� ������RI�WKH�1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�RI�WKH�)XQGV�RQ�WKH�¿UVW�(85�����PLOOLRQ�

• 0.02% of the Net Asset Value of the Funds on the next EUR 500 million;

• 0.01% of the Net Asset Value of the Funds for any amount in excess of EUR 1 billion;

as at the Valuation Point in respect of each Dealing Day subject to a minimum annual management fee of up to EUR 100,000 
per annum.

The Manager may also recover out of pocket expenses reasonably incurred by it or its agents or delegates in the performance 
of their respective functions on behalf of the Funds.

Management Company fees for the Funds were as follows:

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2021 
USD

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2020 
USD

Expense 361,000 256,955
Payable 63,963 26,494

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
Expense 205,475 160,894
Payable 35,858 16,784

    

��� 1HW�*DLQV��/RVVHV��RQ�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DQG�/LDELOLWLHV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV��&RQWLQXHG�
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GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021* 

USD
Expense 13,900
Payable 7,447

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

Investment Management Fees

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Funds will pay to the Investment Manager a fee at an annual rate equal 
to the percentage of the daily Net Asset Value of the relevant Share Class of the Funds as set out below. The investment 
management fee shall accrue daily and be calculated and payable monthly in arrears.

The Investment Manager (or any related person) may from time to time and at its sole discretion and out of its own resources 
GHFLGH�WR�ZDLYH�VRPH�RU�DOO�RI�LWV�LQYHVWPHQW�PDQDJHPHQW�IHH�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�IHH�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�D�VSHFL¿F�6KDUH�&ODVV�
or the Funds as a whole or it may share or rebate some or all of such fees with/to intermediaries or shareholders (any 
such resources or fee sharing will take place outside the Funds). Where the Investment Manager waives some or all of its 
LQYHVWPHQW�PDQDJHPHQW�IHH�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�IHH�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�D�VSHFL¿F�6KDUH�&ODVV�LW�ZLOO�DSSO\�WR�DOO�6KDUHKROGHUV�
within the Share Class. 

The Investment Manager shall be entitled to be reimbursed for its reasonable vouched out of pocket expenses.

7KH� VSHFL¿HG�DQQXDO� ,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHPHQW�)HH�SHUFHQWDJHV��RI� WKH�1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�RI� WKH�)XQGV� DWWULEXWDEOH� WR� WKH�
various Classes, can be seen overleaf.

4. Fees (Continued)

Management Company Fees (Continued)
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GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund
GQG Partners Global 

Equity Fund
GQG Partners U.S. 

Equity Fund^

Share Class
Investment Management 

Fee (per annum)
Investment Management 

Fee (per annum)
Investment Management 

Fee (per annum)
Class A EUR Accumulating* 1.50% 1.25% -
Class A GBP Accumulating 1.50% - -
Class A USD Accumulating 1.50% 1.25% -
Class F EUR Accumulating 1.15% - -
Class F GBP Accumulating 1.15% - -
Class F USD Accumulating 1.15% - -
Class I CHF Accumulating 0.90% - -
Class I EUR Accumulating 0.90% 0.65% -
Class I GBP Accumulating** 0.90% 0.65% 0.45%
Class I JPY Accumulating - 0.65% -
Class I NOK Accumulating 0.90% - -
Class I USD Accumulating*** 0.90% 0.65% 0.45%
Class P USD Accumulating - 0.20% -
Class Q EUR Accumulating**** - - 0.35%
Class Q GBP Accumulating***** - - 0.35%
Class Q USD Accumulating****** - - 0.35%
Class R EUR Accumulating 0.90% 0.65% -
Class R GBP Accumulating 0.90% - -
Class R USD Accumulating 0.90% 0.65% -
Class R USD Distributing******* - 0.65% -
Class S EUR Accumulating 0.75% - -
Class S GBP Accumulating******** 0.75% - -
Class S GBP Distributing 0.75% - -
Class S USD Accumulating 0.75% - -

^ GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021.
* GQG Partners Global Equity Fund Class A EUR Accumulating was launched on 13 December 2021.
** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class I GBP Accumulating was launched on 2 March 2021. 
*** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class I USD Accumulating was launched on 24 June 2021.
**** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class Q EUR Accumulating was launched on 2 February 2021. 
***** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class Q GBP Accumulating was launched on 9 June 2021. 
****** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class Q USD Accumulating was launched on 12 February 2021. 
******* GQG Partners Global Equity Fund Class R USD Distributing was launched on 12 April 2021. 
******** GQG Partners Emerging Markets Fund Class S GBP Accumulating was launched on 24 August 2021. 

Investment management fees for the Funds were as follows:

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2021 
USD

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2020 
USD

Expense 19,409,352 10,778,559
Payable 1,805,091 1,279,993

4. Fees (Continued)

Investment Management Fees (Continued)
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GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
Expense 7,533,001 4,588,227
Payable 682,198 542,165

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021* 

USD
Expense 300,828
Payable 115,942

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

,QYHVWPHQW�PDQDJHPHQW�IHHV�SD\DEOH�DW�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG�ZLOO�EH�SDLG�QHW�RI�D�UHFHLYDEOH�IURP�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHU��
disclosed in the table above, arising as a result of the implementation of the expense limitation detailed overleaf. 

The Investment Manager (or any related person) may from time to time and at its sole discretion and out of its own resources 
GHFLGH�WR�ZDLYH�VRPH�RU�DOO�RI�LWV�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHPHQW�)HH�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�IHH�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�D�VSHFL¿F�&ODVV�RU�WKH�
Fund as a whole or it may share, or rebate some or all of such fees with/to intermediaries or Shareholders (any such rebates 
or fee sharing will take place outside of the Fund). At this time, the Investment Manager has committed to waive fees and 
reimburse the Fund any expenses in order to keep each of the Fund’s Share Classes’ total operating expenses (excluding 
interest, taxes, brokerage commissions, transactional expenses, foreign exchange costs and non-routine expenses or share 
FODVV�VSHFL¿F�H[SHQVHV�L�H��OHQGLQJ�H[SHQVHV��FROOHFWLYHO\��³([FOXGHG�([SHQVHV´���IURP�H[FHHGLQJ�WKH�EHORZ�SHUFHQWDJH�SHU�
annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund (“Expense Limitation”).

4. Fees (Continued)

Investment Management Fees (Continued)
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GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund^

Share Class Expense Limitation 
(%)

Expense Limitation  
(%)

Expense Limitation   
(%)

Class A EUR Accumulating* 1.65% 1.35% -
Class A GBP Accumulating 1.65% - -
Class A USD Accumulating 1.65% 1.35% -
Class F EUR Accumulating 1.30% - -
Class F GBP Accumulating 1.30% - -
Class F USD Accumulating 1.30% - -
Class I CHF Accumulating 1.05% - -
Class I EUR Accumulating 1.05% 0.75% -
Class I GBP Accumulating** 1.05% 0.75% 0.55%
Class I JPY Accumulating - 0.75% -
Class I NOK Accumulating 1.05% - -
Class I USD Accumulating*** 1.05% 0.75% 0.55%
Class P USD Accumulating - 0.30% -
Class Q EUR Accumulating**** - - 0.45%
Class Q GBP Accumulating***** - - 0.45%
Class Q USD Accumulating****** - - 0.45%
Class R EUR Accumulating 1.05% 0.75% -
Class R GBP Accumulating 1.05% - -
Class R USD Accumulating 1.05% 0.75% -
Class R USD Distributing******* - 0.75% -
Class S EUR Accumulating 0.90% - -
Class S GBP Accumulating******** 0.90% - -
Class S GBP Distributing 0.90% - -
Class S USD Accumulating 0.90% - -

^ GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021.
* GQG Partners Global Equity Fund Class A EUR Accumulating was launched on 13 December 2021.
** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class I GBP Accumulating was launched on 2 March 2021. 
*** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class I USD Accumulating was launched on 24 June 2021.
**** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class Q EUR Accumulating was launched on 2 February 2021. 
***** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class Q GBP Accumulating was launched on 9 June 2021. 
****** GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund Class Q USD Accumulating was launched on 12 February 2021. 
******* GQG Partners Global Equity Fund Class R USD Distributing was launched on 12 April 2021. 
******** GQG Partners Emerging Markets Fund Class S GBP Accumulating was launched on 24 August 2021. 
 

3HUIRUPDQFH�)HHV

In addition to the Investment Management Fee, the Investment Manager is entitled to a performance fee (the “Performance 
Fee”) in relation to certain Classes of the Funds. The Performance Fee will currently only be payable out of the net assets 
attributable to Class P of the Funds.

7KH�3HUIRUPDQFH�)HH�VKDOO�EH�FDOFXODWHG�DQG�VKDOO�DFFUXH�DW�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�SRLQW�DQG�WKH�DFFUXDO�ZLOO�EH�UHÀHFWHG�LQ�WKH�1HW�
Asset Value per Share of the Funds. The performance period of the Funds is every 12 months ending on the last business 
day of each calendar year (the “Performance Period”). The Performance Fee for all relevant Classes subject to such a Fee for 
each Performance Period shall be equal to 20% of the amount, if any, by which the Net Asset Value before Performance Fee 
accrual (to the extent it is in Shareholders’ best interests) of the Class exceeds the indexed Net Asset Value of the Class on 
the last business day of the Performance Period. In addition, the Performance Fee with respect to any redemptions of Shares 
during the Performance Period will crystallise and typically become payable within 14 days of redemption date.

4. Fees (Continued)

Investment Management Fees (Continued)
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For the avoidance of doubt any underperformance versus the benchmark must be recouped before any additional Performance 
Fee will accrue in subsequent Performance Periods. Further, a Performance Fee will only be paid on the amount by which 
the Net Asset Value exceeds the indexed Net Asset Value of the Funds. There were no performance fees paid during the 
period or payable at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: none).

Administration Fees

The Funds are responsible for the continuing fees of the Administrator in accordance with the Prospectus dated 14 December 
2021:

The Administrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Funds a fee at an annual rate: 

�� ������RI�WKH�1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�RI�WKH�XPEUHOOD�RQ�WKH�¿UVW�(85�����PLOOLRQ�

• 0.03% of the Net Asset Value of the umbrella on the next EUR 300 million;

• 0.02% of the Net Asset Value of the umbrella for any amount in excess of EUR 500 million;

Each of the foregoing is subject to a monthly minimum fee of EUR 8,500 per Fund. In addition, each Fund shall be subject 
to a minimum of EUR 150 per month per live Share class in excess of three Share classes per Fund. The Administrator has 
YROXQWDULO\�DJUHHG�WR�ZDLYH�LWV�PLQLPXP�PRQWKO\�IHH�IRU�WKH�¿UVW�VL[�PRQWKV�DIWHU�)XQG�ODXQFK��7KH�IXQG�KDV�QRZ�EHHQ�
opened longer than six months and the waiver has expired.

The Administrator is also entitled to charge an annual fee to the Fund of up to EUR 7,500 for the preparation of the annual 
DQG�VHPL�DQQXDO�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��WR�LQFOXGH�RQH�)XQG���$Q�DGGLWLRQDO�IHH�RI�(85�������SHU�DQQXP�ZLOO�EH�FKDUJHG�IRU�
each additional Fund. In addition, the Administrator is also entitled to charge to the Fund all agreed fees and transaction 
charges, at normal commercial rates, together with reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (plus any applicable taxes), it incurs 
on behalf of the Fund in the performance of its duties under the Administration Agreement, which shall be payable monthly 
in arrears. 

Administration fees for the Funds were as follows:

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2021 
USD

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2020 
USD

Expense 670,840 395,037
Payable 73,997 99,596

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
Expense 359,814 224,917
Payable 40,048 55,042

4. Fees (Continued)
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GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021* 

USD
Expense 59,079
Payable 13,934

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

Depositary Fees

The Funds are responsible for paying the continuing fees of the Depositary in accordance with the Prospectus dated 14 
December 2021.

The Depositary shall be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Funds an annual depositary fee, accrued at each Valuation 
Point and payable monthly in arrears, which shall not exceed 0.03% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund subject 
to a minimum annual depositary fee of up to EUR 35,000 per annum (plus VAT, if any) thereon.

,Q� DGGLWLRQ�� WKH�)XQGV� VKDOO� SD\�RU� UHLPEXUVH� WKH�GHSRVLWDU\� LQ� UHVSHFW�RI� DOO� UHDVRQDEOH� DQG�SURSHUO\�YRXFKHG�RXW±RI�
pocket expenses incurred by it, including (without limitation) all charges for postage, telephone and faxing incurred by the 
Depositary in the performance of duties hereunder.

The Depositary shall also be entitled to be repaid the fees, transaction charges and expenses of any sub-custodian appointed 
by it which shall be at normal commercial rates and subject to minimum annual custody fee of EUR 30,000 per Fund (plus 
VAT, if any) thereon.

Depositary fees for the Funds were as follows:

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2021 
USD

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2020 
USD

Expense 1,490,935 648,806
Payable 138,337 131,100

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
Expense 415,644 248,787
Payable 33,012 46,837
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GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021* 

USD
Expense 46,640
Payable 4,769

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

Directors’ Fees 

The Instrument provides that the Directors shall be entitled to a fee by way of remuneration for their services at a rate to be 
GHWHUPLQHG�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH�E\�WKH�'LUHFWRUV��+RZHYHU��'LUHFWRUV�D൶OLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHU�DUH�QRW�HQWLWOHG�WR�
a fee. The aggregate amount of Directors’ remuneration in any one year shall not exceed EUR 120,000 without the approval 
of the Directors. All Directors will be entitled to reimbursement by the Fund of expenses properly incurred in connection 
with the business of the ICAV or its Fund or the discharge of their duties. 

Directors' fees for the Funds were as follows:

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2021 
USD

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2020 
USD

Expense 50,257 36,840

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
Expense 28,797 20,547

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021* 

USD
Expense 2,527
Payable 319

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

4. Fees (Continued)
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Auditor’s Remuneration

7KH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�IRU�DOO�ZRUN�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�WKH�VWDWXWRU\�DXGLW�¿UP�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�LV�DV�IROORZV�

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Statutory audit (exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses) (24,894) (23,317)
Other assurance services ± ±
Tax advisory services ± ±
Other non-audit services ± ±
VAT and out of pocket expenses (5,726) (5,363)
Total (30,620) (28,680)

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Statutory audit (exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses) (27,743) (20,137)
Other assurance services ± ±
Tax advisory services ± ±
Other non-audit services ± ±
VAT and out of pocket expenses (6,381) (4,631)
Total (34,124) (24,768)

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021*
Statutory audit (exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses) (20,146)
Other assurance services ±
Tax advisory services ±
Other non-audit services ±
VAT and out of pocket expenses (4,634)
Total (24,780)

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

4. Fees (Continued)
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5. Other Expenses

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Corporate secretarial fees 28,998 18,525
Directors' insurance fees 15,521 8,385
Legal fees 217,427 300,328
Other operating expenses (849) (7,026)
Directors' out of pocket fees (137) (1,827)
Other listing fees            69,671 70,600
Professional fees 47,818 49,719
5HJLVWUDWLRQ�DQG�¿OLQJ�IHHV 76,522 33,138
Total 454,971 471,842

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Corporate secretarial fees 16,726 13,937
Directors' insurance fees 8,710 3,969
Legal fees 146,413 168,715
Other operating expenses (1,519) (488)
Directors' out of pocket fees (82) (845)
Other listing fees            28,304 39,948
Professional fees 31,115 22,299
5HJLVWUDWLRQ�DQG�¿OLQJ�IHHV 42,869 27,822
Total 272,536 275,357

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021*
Corporate secretarial fees 1,826
Establishment costs 39,429
Directors' insurance fees 32
Legal fees 41,917
Other operating expenses 2,830
Other listing fees            4,633
Professional fees 3,673
5HJLVWUDWLRQ�DQG�¿OLQJ�IHHV 17,805
Total 112,145

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available. 
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6. Other Payables and Accrued Expenses

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Corporate secretarial fees payable 8,968 8,229
Legal fees payable 30,305 56,797
Other payables and accrued expenses 59,497 90,731
Dealing yet to be processed ± 143,069
Spot contract payable 21,032 126,672
Total 119,802 425,498

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Corporate secretarial fees payable 5,061 5,678
Legal fees payable 17,306 18,822
Other payables and accrued expenses 46,799 57,116
Spot contract payable 22,354 55,039
Total 91,520 136,655

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021*
Corporate secretarial fees payable 1,351
Legal fees payable 7,509
Other payables and accrued expenses 21,606
Spot contract payable 493
Total 30,959

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

7. Other Receivables

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Prepaid Director insurance 1,230 627
Spot contract receivable 5,692 16,797
Total 6,922 17,424
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GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Prepaid Director insurance 694 431
Spot contract receivable 11,896 939
Total 12,590 1,370

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021*
Prepaid Director insurance 186
Prepaid Miscellaneous Expenses 7,505
Spot contract receivable 31
Total 7,722

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The following table documents the Funds’ cash held at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 with The Northern Trust 
Company (“TNTC”). TNTC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Northern Trust Corporation.

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2021 
USD

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
As at 

31 December 2020 
USD

Cash held 77,600,008 128,181,482

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

GQG Partners 
Global Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
Cash held 43,550,427 58,179,816

GQG Partners U.S. 
Equity Fund 

As at 
31 December 2021* 

USD
Cash held 12,027,320

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

 

 

7. Other Receivables (Continued)
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Northern Trust Corporation had a long term rating as follows:

As at 
31 December 2021

As at 
31 December 2020

Standard & Poor's A+ A+

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�EDQN�RYHUGUDIWV�DV�DW�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG����'HFHPEHU����������'HFHPEHU�������QRQH��

9. Financial Risk Management

Strategy in using Financial Instruments

7KH�RYHUDOO�REMHFWLYH�RI�WKH�)XQGV�LV�WR�SURYLGH�FDSLWDO�DSSUHFLDWLRQ�RYHU�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP��7KH�)XQGV�DUH�GL൵HUHQWLDWHG�E\�WKHLU�
asset allocation and the investment instruments used.

7KH�)XQGV¶�DFWLYLWLHV�H[SRVH�WKHP�WR�D�YDULHW\�RI�¿QDQFLDO�ULVNV��PDUNHW�ULVN��LQFOXGLQJ�SULFH�ULVN��LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�DQG�IRUHLJQ�
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Funds’ overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability 
RI�¿QDQFLDO�PDUNHWV�DQG�VHHNV�WR�PLQLPLVH�SRWHQWLDO�DGYHUVH�H൵HFWV�RQ�WKH�)XQGV¶�¿QDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH��7KH�)XQGV�PD\�XVH�
GHULYDWLYH�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WR�PRGHUDWH�FHUWDLQ�ULVN�H[SRVXUHV�

7KH�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHU�DVVHVVHV�WKH�ULVN�SUR¿OH�RI�WKH�)XQGV�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SROLF\��VWUDWHJ\�DQG�WKH�XVH�
PDGH�RI�¿QDQFLDO�GHULYDWLYH�LQVWUXPHQWV��7KH�)XQGV�HPSOR\�WKH�FRPPLWPHQW�DSSURDFK�WR�PHDVXUH�LWV�JOREDO�H[SRVXUH��7KH�
global exposure of the Funds will not exceed their total Net Asset Value at any time. The method used to calculate global 
exposure for each Fund is set out in the relevant Fund Supplement.

The Manager, as part of their risk management and monitoring obligations receives and relies on both regular and exception 
based risk reporting provided by the Investment Manager and the Administrator of the Funds (“Delegates”). The Investment 
Manager and the Administrator will provide reporting to the Manager and should an issue be noted in the reporting, the 
0DQDJHU�ZLOO�LQ�WKH�¿UVW�LQVWDQFH�OLDLVH�ZLWK�WKH�GHOHJDWH�UHVSRQVLEOH�WR�WU\�WR�HVWDEOLVK�D�PHWKRG�IRU�UHVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�LVVXH�
DQG�DVVLVW�WKHP�ZKHUH�QHFHVVDU\��$Q\�VLJQL¿FDQW�ULVN�LWHPV�ZKLFK�FDQQRW�EH�HDVLO\�UHVROYHG�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�HVFDODWHG�
to senior management of the delegate and further explanations from the delegate will be required to be provided to the 
Manager and the Board.

Market Risk

0DUNHW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RU�IXWXUH�FDVK�ÀRZV�RI�D�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�ÀXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

7KH� ,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHU�PRGHUDWHV�PDUNHW� ULVN� WKURXJK� FDUHIXO� VHOHFWLRQ� RI� VHFXULWLHV� DQG� RWKHU� ¿QDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�
ZLWKLQ�VSHFL¿HG�OLPLWV��7KH�)XQG�KDV�H[SRVXUH�WR�VRPH�RI�WKH�DERYH�ULVNV�WR�JHQHUDWH�LQYHVWPHQW�UHWXUQV�RQ�WKHLU�SRUWIROLRV��
although these risks can also potentially result in a reduction in the Fund assets. The Funds’ overall market position is 
monitored on a daily basis by the Funds’ Investment Manager and is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors.

$W����'HFHPEHU�������WKH�)XQGV¶�PDUNHW�ULVN�LV�D൵HFWHG�E\�WKUHH�FRPSRQHQWV�

i) changes in actual equity prices ("price risk");
i) interest rate movements ("interest rate risk"); and,
i) foreign currency movements ("foreign currency risk").
 
(i) Price Risk

3ULFH�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�YDOXH�RI�DQ�LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�ÀXFWXDWH�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�SULFHV��RWKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�
DULVLQJ�IURP�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�RU�FXUUHQF\�ULVN���ZKHWKHU�FDXVHG�E\�IDFWRUV�VSHFL¿F�WR�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�LQYHVWPHQW��LWV�LVVXHU�RU�
DOO�IDFWRUV�D൵HFWLQJ�DOO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WUDGHG�LQ�WKH�PDUNHW�

The Funds’ investments are susceptible to price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the instruments. The 
)XQGV¶�SULFH�ULVN�LV�PDQDJHG�SULPDULO\�E\�HQVXULQJ�WKH�SRUWIROLR�LV�DGHTXDWHO\�GLYHUVL¿HG�DFURVV�D�VX൶FLHQWO\�KLJK�QXPEHU�
of equity and equity-related securities. 

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)
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The Funds’ underlying investments which consist of equities and P-Notes in the prior year are subject to price risk. The 
sectoral breakdown of these securities as a percentage of the Net Asset Value is disclosed within the Schedule of Investments 
on page 71. 

The following table documents the Funds’ exposure to price risks as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 if the 
price of the Funds’ underlying investments to which the Fund had exposure increased by 5% with all other variables held 
constant. Conversely, if the price of the Funds’ underlying investments to which the Fund had exposure had decreased by 
���WKLV�ZRXOG�KDYH�DQ�HTXDO�EXW�RSSRVLWH�H൵HFW�RQ�WKH�QHW�DVVHWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KROGHUV�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VKDUHV�
of the Fund:

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
5% increase 115,375,948 85,409,642

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund As at 
31 December 2021 

USD

As at 
31 December 2020 

USD
5% increase 63,648,187 51,451,419

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund As at 
31 December 2021* 

USD
5% increase 25,165,659

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available. 

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

7KH�)XQGV¶�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�H[SRVH�WKHP�WR�ULVNV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�H൵HFWV�RI�ÀXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�
WKH�SUHYDLOLQJ�OHYHOV�RI�PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�RQ�WKHLU�¿QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�FDVK�ÀRZV�

Interest rate risk is managed, in part, by the security selection process of the Investment Manager which includes predictions 
RI� IXWXUH� HYHQWV� DQG� WKHLU� LPSDFW� RQ� LQWHUHVW� UDWHV�� GLYHUVL¿FDWLRQ� DQG� GXUDWLRQ�� ,Q� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� )XQGV� SROLF\�� WKH�
Investment Manager monitors the Funds’ overall interest sensitivity on a daily basis. The Directors rely on the Investment 
Manager to keep them informed of any material event. There were no material changes to the Funds’ policies and processes 
for managing interest rate risk and the methods used to measure risk since the date of authorisation. 

9. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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The following table documents the Funds’ exposure to interest rate risks as at 31 December 2021:

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund 
 
As at 31 December 2021

Less than  
1 month  

USD

Non-interest  
bearing  

USD
Total 
USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU� 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�DQG�/RVV ± 2,307,518,969 2,307,518,969
Receivables ± 9,169,984 9,169,984
Cash and Cash equivalents 77,600,008 ± 77,600,008
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV 77,600,008 2,316,688,953 2,394,288,961

± ± ±
Financial Liabilities ± ± ±
Payables ± (36,328,076) (36,328,076)
Redeemable participating shares ± (2,357,960,885) (2,357,960,885)
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV ± (2,394,288,961) (2,394,288,961)

± ± ±
Total interest sensitivity gap 77,600,008 (77,600,008) ±

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund 
 
As at 31 December 2021

Less than  
1 month  

USD

Non-interest  
bearing  

USD
Total 
USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU� 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�DQG�/RVV ± 1,272,963,745 1,272,963,745
Receivables ± 15,803,715 15,803,715
Cash and Cash equivalents 43,550,427 ± 43,550,427
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV 43,550,427 1,288,767,460 1,332,317,887

± ± ±
Financial Liabilities ± ± ±
Payables ± (8,452,376) (8,452,376)
Redeemable participating shares ± (1,323,865,511) (1,323,865,511)
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV ± (1,332,317,887) (1,332,317,887)

± ± ±
Total interest sensitivity gap 43,550,427 (43,550,427) ±

9. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(ii) Interest Rate Risk (Continued)
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GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund 
 
As at 31 December 2021

Less than  
1 month  

USD

Non-interest  
bearing  

USD
Total 
USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU� 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�DQG�/RVV ± 503,318,617 503,318,617
Receivables ± 1,555,512 1,555,512
Cash and Cash equivalents 12,027,320 ± 12,027,320
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV 12,027,320 504,874,129 516,901,449

± ± ±
Financial Liabilities ± ± ±
)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�DQG�/RVV ± (5,431) (5,431)
Payables ± (2,407,679) (2,407,679)
Redeemable participating shares ± (514,488,339) (514,488,339)
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV ± (516,901,449) (516,901,449)

± ± ±
Total interest sensitivity gap 12,027,320 (12,027,320) ±

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available. 

The following table documents the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risks as at 31 December 2020:

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund 
 
As at 31 December 2020

Less than  
1 month  

USD

Non-interest  
bearing  

USD
Total 
USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU� 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�DQG�/RVV ± 1,708,192,832 1,708,192,832
Receivables ± 27,943,671 27,943,671
Cash and Cash equivalents 128,181,482 ± 128,181,482
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV 128,181,482 1,736,136,503 1,864,317,985

± ± ±
Financial Liabilities ± ± ±
Payables ± (107,657,880) (107,657,880)
Redeemable participating shares ± (1,756,660,105) (1,756,660,105)
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV ± (1,864,317,985) (1,864,317,985)

± ± ±
Total interest sensitivity gap 128,181,482 (128,181,482) ±
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GQG Partners Global Equity Fund 
 
As at 31 December 2020

Less than  
1 month  

USD

Non-interest  
bearing  

USD
Total 
USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU� 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�DQG�/RVV ± 1,029,028,373 1,029,028,373
Receivables ± 8,976,743 8,976,743
Cash and Cash equivalents 58,179,816 ± 58,179,816
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV 58,179,816 1,038,005,116 1,096,184,932

± ± ±
Financial Liabilities ± ± ±
Payables ± (45,181,308) (45,181,308)
Redeemable participating shares ± (1,051,003,624) (1,051,003,624)
7RWDO�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV ± (1,096,184,932) (1,096,184,932)

± ± ±
Total interest sensitivity gap 58,179,816 (58,179,816) ±

Interest risk exposure is not material as the cash is immediately available to invest and is not subject to any restrictions 
which would create interest rate risk movement for each of the Funds and therefore no sensitivity analysis presented as at 
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: same).

(iii) Foreign Currency Risk

)RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RU�IXWXUH�FDVK�ÀRZV�RI�D�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�ÀXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�
changes in foreign exchange rates. Certain assets, liabilities and income of the Funds are denominated in currencies other 
than US Dollar. The Funds are, therefore, exposed to currency risk as the value of the securities denominated in other 
FXUUHQFLHV�ZLOO�ÀXFWXDWH�GXH�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV��

In accordance with the Funds policy, the Investment Manager monitors the currency position of the Funds on a daily basis 
and the Board of Directors reviews it on a regular basis. 
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The following tables document the Funds’ exposure to currency risks as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020: 

As at 31 December 2021

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund 
Monetary 

Assets (including 
equity investments) 

USD

Monetary  
Liabilities 

USD

FX Spot 
Contracts 

USD
Total 
USD

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

%

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

USD
Brazilian Real 101,406,483 ± ± 101,406,483 5.00% 5,070,324
Swiss Franc 31,331 ± (31,265) 66 5.00% 3
Chinese Yuan 113,999,285 ± ± 113,999,285 5.00% 5,699,964
Euro 197,641,788 ± (461,135) 197,180,653 5.00% 9,859,033
British Sterling Pound ± (2,383,238) (1,326,756) (3,709,994) 5.00% (185,500)
Hong Kong Dollar 251,053,106 (6,586,639) 6,586,639 251,053,106 5.00% 12,552,655
Indonesian Rupiah 22,991,196 ± ± 22,991,196 5.00% 1,149,560
Indian Rupee 484,450,072 (2,203,051) ± 482,247,021 5.00% 24,112,351
Korean Won 131,409,984 (735,200) 735,200 131,409,984 5.00% 6,570,499
Mexican Nuevo Peso 30,736,090 ± ± 30,736,090 5.00% 1,536,805
Norweigan Krone 1,819,949 (997) (1,820,593) (1,641) 5.00% (82)
Russian Ruble 315,930,502 ± ± 315,930,502 5.00% 15,796,525
Turkish Lira 17,473,175 ± ± 17,473,175 5.00% 873,659
Taiwan Dollar 156,965,849 (3,333,272) ± 153,632,577 5.00% 7,681,629
South Africa Rand 12,747,118 ± ± 12,747,118 5.00% 637,356

1,838,655,928 (15,242,397) 3,682,090 1,827,095,621 5.00% 91,354,781

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund 
Monetary 

Assets (including 
equity investments) 

USD

Monetary  
Liabilities 

USD

FX Spot 
Contracts 

USD
Total 
USD

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

%

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

USD
Brazilian Real 28,251,766 ± ± 28,251,766 5.00% 1,412,588
Canadian Dollar 23,317,623 (979,589) 979,589 23,317,623 5.00% 1,165,881
Swiss Franc 26,352,437 (388) ± 26,352,049 5.00% 1,317,603
Danish Kroner 36,685,469 ± ± 36,685,469 5.00% 1,834,274
Euro 157,615,669 (1,278,031) (2,194,898) 154,142,740 5.00% 7,707,137
British Sterling Pound 37,464,547 (2) 3 37,464,548 5.00% 1,873,227
Hong Kong Dollar 7,312,748 ± (1,950,984) 5,361,764 5.00% 268,088

317,000,259 (2,258,010) (3,166,290) 311,575,959 5.00% 15,578,798
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GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund* 
Monetary 

Assets (including 
equity investments) 

USD

Monetary  
Liabilities 

USD

FX Spot 
Contracts 

USD
Total 
USD

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

%

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

USD
Euro 1,005,134 (14) (1,003,552) 1,568 5.00% 79
British Sterling Pound 118,826 (322) (297,282) (178,778) 5.00% (8,939)

1,123,960 (336) (1,300,834) (177,210) 5.00% (8,860)

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.  

As at 31 December 2020

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund 
Monetary 

Assets (including 
equity investments) 

USD

Monetary  
Liabilities 

USD

FX Spot 
Contracts 

USD
Total 
USD

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

%

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

USD
Brazilian Real 66,499,642 (4,239,386) 4,239,386 66,499,642 5.00% 3,324,982
Chinese Yuan 203,136,583 ± ± 203,136,583 5.00% 10,156,829
Euro 107,513,241 (27,157,079) 21,545,550 101,901,712 5.00% 5,095,086
British Sterling Pound 7,727,559 ± ± 7,727,559 5.00% 386,378
Hong Kong Dollar 264,676,038 (36,675,526) 14,450,415 242,450,927 5.00% 12,122,546
Indonesian Rupiah 17,573,005 (1,206,913) ± 16,366,092 5.00% 818,305
Indian Rupee 242,593,689 (12,558,132) ± 230,035,557 5.00% 11,501,778
Korean Won 118,420,542 (487,582) ± 117,932,960 5.00% 5,896,648
Polish Zloty 13,337,920 ± ± 13,337,920 5.00% 666,896
Norweigan Krone 2,430,878 (35,519) (2,452,039) (56,680) 5.00% (2,834)
Russian Ruble 55,690,430 ± ± 55,690,430 5.00% 2,784,521
Taiwan Dollar 116,900,863 (3,734,926) ± 113,165,937 5.00% 5,658,297

1,216,500,390 (86,095,063) 37,783,312 1,168,188,639 5.00% 58,409,432

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund 
Monetary 

Assets (including 
equity investments) 

USD

Monetary  
Liabilities 

USD

FX Spot 
Contracts 

USD
Total 
USD

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

%

FX Rate 
Sensitivity 

USD
Brazilian Real 9,008,855 (1,131,304) 1,131,304 9,008,855 5.00% 450,443
Swiss Franc 47,896,953 (7,944,697) 7,944,697 47,896,953 5.00% 2,394,848
Danish Kroner 35,298,838 ± ± 35,298,838 5.00% 1,764,942
Euro 90,391,912 (3,703,210) 2,343,788 89,032,490 5.00% 4,451,624
British Sterling Pound 38,861 ± (113) 38,748 5.00% 1,937
Hong Kong Dollar 36,732,465 ± (6,381,055) 30,351,410 5.00% 1,517,571
Japanese Yen (10,017) ± ± (10,017) 5.00% (501)
Korean Won 12,137,507 ± ± 12,137,507 5.00% 606,875

231,495,374 (12,779,211) 5,038,621 223,754,784 5.00% 11,187,739
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Credit Risk, Depositary and Title Risk

Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (“NTFSIL”) is the appointed Depositary of the Funds, responsible for 
the safe-keeping of assets. NTFSIL has appointed TNTC as its global sub-custodian. Both NTFSIL and TNTC are wholly 
owned subsidiaries of Northern Trust Corporation (“NTC”).

NTC had a long term Standard & Poor’s credit rating as follows:

As at 
31 December 2021

As at 
31 December 2020

Standard & Poor's A+ A+

TNTC (as global sub-custodian of NTFSIL) does not appoint external sub-custodians within the U.S., the U.K., Ireland, 
Canada, Belgium, France, Germany, Netherlands and Saudi Arabia. However, in all other markets, TNTC appoints local 
external sub-custodians. 

17)6,/��LQ�WKH�GLVFKDUJH�RI�LWV�GHSRVLWDU\�GXWLHV��YHUL¿HV�WKH�)XQGV¶�RZQHUVKLS�RI�2WKHU�$VVHWV��$UW�������RI�8&,76�9�
Directive 2014/91/EU), by assessing whether the Funds hold the ownership based on information or documents provided by 
the Funds or where available, on external evidence. 

717&��LQ�WKH�GLVFKDUJH�RI�LWV�GHOHJDWHG�GHSRVLWDU\�GXWLHV��KROGV�LQ�FXVWRG\��L��DOO�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WKDW�PD\�EH�UHJLVWHUHG�
LQ�D�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DFFRXQW�RSHQHG�RQ�WKH�ERRNV�RI�717&�DQG��LL��DOO�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�SK\VLFDOO\�
GHOLYHUHG�WR�717&��717&�HQVXUHV�DOO�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��KHOG�LQ�D�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DFFRXQW�RQ�WKH�ERRNV�RI�717&��
DUH�KHOG�LQ�VHJUHJDWHG�DFFRXQWV�LQ�WKH�QDPH�RI�WKH�)XQGV��FOHDUO\�LGHQWL¿DEOH�DV�EHORQJLQJ�WR�WKH�)XQGV��DQG�GLVWLQFW�DQG�
separately from the proprietary assets of TNTC, NTFSIL and NTC. 

In addition TNTC, as banker, holds the cash of the Fund on deposit. Such cash is held on the Statement of Financial Position 
of TNTC. In the event of insolvency of TNTC, in accordance with standard banking practice, the Funds will rank as an 
unsecured creditor of TNTC in respect of any cash deposits. 

,QVROYHQF\�RI�17)6,/�DQG�RU�RQH�RI� LWV�DJHQWV�RU�D൶OLDWHV�PD\�FDXVH� WKH�)XQG¶V� ULJKWV�ZLWK�UHVSHFW� WR� LWV�DVVHWV� WR�EH�
delayed. 

The Responsible Party (the “board of directors or its delegate(s)”), manages risk by monitoring the credit quality and 
¿QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�'HSRVLWDU\�DQG�VXFK�ULVN�LV�IXUWKHU�PDQDJHG�E\�WKH�'HSRVLWDU\�PRQLWRULQJ�WKH�FUHGLW�TXDOLW\�DQG�
¿QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQV�RI�VXE�FXVWRGLDQ�DSSRLQWPHQWV��

Liquidity Risk

/LTXLGLW\�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�)XQGV�PD\�QRW�EH�DEOH�WR�JHQHUDWH�VX൶FLHQW�FDVK�UHVRXUFHV�WR�VHWWOH�LWV�REOLJDWLRQV�LQ�IXOO�DV�
they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous. The Investment Manager manages the Funds’ 
liquidity risk. The ICAV may borrow monies on behalf of the Funds and may leverage the assets of each of the Funds. 
Leverage may be obtained for the Funds through borrowing for general liquidity purposes. The Funds may be leveraged up 
to 10% of its Net Asset Value calculated in accordance with commitment methodology.

The main liability of the Funds is the redemption of any redeemable participating shares that investors wish to sell. The 
Funds’ supplements provide for the daily creation and cancellation of Shares and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk 
RI�PHHWLQJ�6KDUHKROGHU�UHGHPSWLRQV�DW�DQ\�WLPH��7KH�)XQGV¶�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�LQFOXGH�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�HTXLWLHV��ZKLFK�
can normally be easily liquidated at an amount close to fair value in order to meet liquidity requirements.

The Funds may, from time to time, invest in derivative contracts traded over the counter, which are not traded in an organised 
market and may be illiquid. As a result, the Funds may not be able to liquidate quickly its investments in these instruments 
DW�DQ�DPRXQW�FORVH�WR�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXH�WR�PHHW�LWV�OLTXLGLW\�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RU�WR�UHVSRQG�WR�VSHFL¿F�HYHQWV�VXFK�DV�GHWHULRUDWLRQ�
in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer.
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In accordance with the Funds’ policy, the Investment Manager and the Directors monitor the Funds’ liquidity risk on a 
periodic basis. If the environment/portfolio changed whereby the portfolios were nearing the 10% limit, then the Investment 
Manager would begin daily calculations.

7KH�WDEOHV�EHORZ�DQDO\VH�WKH�)XQGV¶�¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�HDUOLHVW�SRVVLEOH�PDWXULW\�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash 
ÀRZV��%DODQFHV�GXH�ZLWKLQ�WZHOYH�PRQWKV�HTXDO�WKHLU�FDUU\LQJ�EDODQFHV�DV�WKH�LPSDFW�RI�GLVFRXQWLQJ�LV�QRW�VLJQL¿FDQW�

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund 
31 December 2021

Less than  
1 month  

USD
Total 
USD

Accrued expenses and payables 18,440,729 18,440,729
Securities purchased payable 17,887,347 17,887,347
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable  
Participating Shares 2,357,960,885 2,357,960,885

2,394,288,961 2,394,288,961

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund 
31 December 2020

Less than  
1 month  

USD
Total 
USD

Accrued expenses and payables 9,958,199 9,958,199
Securities purchased payable 97,699,681 97,699,681
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable  
Participating Shares 1,756,660,105 1,756,660,105

1,864,317,985 1,864,317,985

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund 
31 December 2021

Less than  
1 month  

USD
Total 
USD

Accrued expenses and payables 938,955 938,955
Securities purchased payable 7,513,421 7,513,421
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable  
Participating Shares 1,323,865,511 1,323,865,511

1,332,317,887 1,332,317,887

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund 
31 December 2020

Less than  
1 month  

USD
Total 
USD

Accrued expenses and payables 10,657,051 10,657,051
Securities purchased payable 34,524,257 34,524,257
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable  
Participating Shares 1,051,003,624 1,051,003,624

1,096,184,932 1,096,184,932
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GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund* 
31 December 2021

Less than  
1 month  

USD
Total 
USD

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�FODVVL¿HG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�3UR¿W�DQG�/RVV 5,431 5,431
Accrued expenses and payables 299,888 299,888
Securities purchased payable 2,107,791 2,107,791
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable  
Participating Shares 514,488,339 514,488,339

516,901,449 516,901,449

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to settle a liability in an orderly transaction between 
PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQWV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�PHDVXUHPHQW��,QYHVWPHQWV�KHOG�E\�WKH�)XQGV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�
ORVV�DQG�DUH�WKHUHIRUH�D൵HFWHG�E\�LQSXWV�WR�YDOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�XVHG�LQ�DUULYLQJ�DW�WKDW�IDLU�YDOXH�

0RVW�RI�WKH�)XQGV¶�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�FDUULHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�RQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ��
8VXDOO\�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�FDQ�EH�UHOLDEO\�GHWHUPLQHG�ZLWKLQ�D�UHDVRQDEOH�UDQJH�RI�HVWLPDWHV��)RU�
FHUWDLQ�RWKHU�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�DPRXQWV�IRU�RWKHU�DVVHWV��DFFUXHG�H[SHQVHV�DQG�SD\DEOH�IRU�VHFXULWLHV�SXUFKDVHG��
WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�DSSUR[LPDWH�IDLU�YDOXH�GXH�WR�WKH�LPPHGLDWH�RU�VKRUW�WHUP�QDWXUH�RI�WKHVH�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��7KH�
FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�DOO�WKH�)XQGV¶�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ�GDWH�DSSUR[LPDWH�WKHLU�
fair values. 

In order to evaluate the nature and extent of risk arising from the valuation of these investments they have been arranged, 
in accordance with IFRS, into a hierarchy giving the highest priority to unadjusted prices in active markets (Level 1 
measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

• Level 1: Quoted price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;
• Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (for example as prices) or indirectly (for 

example derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted prices in active markets for 
similar instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active or 
YDOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�IRU�ZKLFK�DOO�VLJQL¿FDQW�LQSXWV�DUH�GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\�REVHUYDEOH�IURP�PDUNHW�GDWD��DQG

• /HYHO����9DOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�XVLQJ�VLJQL¿FDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV��7KLV�FDWHJRU\�LQFOXGHV�DOO�LQVWUXPHQWV�IRU�ZKLFK�
WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXH�LQFOXGHV�LQSXWV�QRW�EDVHG�RQ�REVHUYDEOH�GDWD�DQG�WKH�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�KDYH�D�VLJQL¿FDQW�
H൵HFW�RQ� WKH� LQYHVWPHQW
V�YDOXDWLRQ��7KLV�FDWHJRU\� LQFOXGHV� LQVWUXPHQWV� WKDW� DUH�YDOXHG�EDVHG�RQ�TXRWHG�SULFHV� IRU�
VLPLODU�LQVWUXPHQWV�IRU�ZKLFK�VLJQL¿FDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�DGMXVWPHQWV�RU�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�UHÀHFW�GL൵HUHQFHV�
between the instruments.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market participants 
use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price information, volatility statistics, 
VSHFL¿F� DQG� EURDG� FUHGLW� GDWD�� OLTXLGLW\� VWDWLVWLFV� DQG� RWKHU� IDFWRUV��$� ¿QDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQW
V� OHYHO�ZLWKLQ� WKH� IDLU� YDOXH�
KLHUDUFK\�LV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�RI�DQ\�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQL¿FDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�

7KH� GHWHUPLQDWLRQ� RI� ZKDW� FRQVWLWXWHV� 
REVHUYDEOH
� UHTXLUHV� VLJQL¿FDQW� MXGJHPHQW� E\� WKH� )XQGV�� 7KH� )XQGV� FRQVLGHU�
REVHUYDEOH�GDWD�WR�EH�WKDW�PDUNHW�GDWD�ZKLFK�LV�UHDGLO\�DYDLODEOH��UHJXODUO\�GLVWULEXWHG�RU�XSGDWHG��UHOLDEOH�DQG�YHUL¿DEOH��
not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

7KH�FDWHJRULVDWLRQ�RI�D�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�ZLWKLQ�WKH�KLHUDUFK\�LV�EDVHG�XSRQ�WKH�SULFLQJ�WUDQVSDUHQF\�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�
and does not necessarily correspond to the Funds’ perceived risk of that instrument.
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)LQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�ZKRVH�YDOXHV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�TXRWHG�PDUNHW�SULFHV� LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV��DUH� WKHUHIRUH�FODVVL¿HG�ZLWKLQ�
Level 1.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market 
SULFHV��GHDOHU�TXRWDWLRQV�RU�DOWHUQDWLYH�SULFLQJ�VRXUFHV�VXSSRUWHG�E\�REVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�DUH�FODVVL¿HG�ZLWKLQ�/HYHO����7KHVH�
include certain Financial Derivative Instruments where the price is calculated internally using observable data. Financial 
LQVWUXPHQWV�FODVVL¿HG�DV�/HYHO��� WUDGHG�LQ�PDUNHWV�PD\�EH�DGMXVWHG�WR�UHÀHFW� LOOLTXLGLW\��VXFK�DGMXVWPHQWV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�
DYDLODEOH�PDUNHW�LQIRUPDWLRQ��$OO�RWKHU�XQTXRWHG�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�FODVVL¿HG�LQWR�/HYHO���E\�GHIDXOW�

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOHV�SUHVHQW�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�FDUULHG�RQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�E\�OHYHO�
within the valuation hierarchy under IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”:

As at 31 December 2021

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
USD USD USD USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�
Equities 2,307,518,969 ± ± 2,307,518,969

2,307,518,969 – – 2,307,518,969

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
USD USD USD USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�
Equities 1,272,963,745 ± ± 1,272,963,745

1,272,963,745 – – 1,272,963,745

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund*

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
USD USD USD USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�
Equities 503,318,594 ± ± 503,318,594
Forward Currency Contracts ± 23 ± 23

503,318,594 23 – 503,318,617

Liabilities
)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�
Forward Currency Contracts ± (5,431) ± (5,431)

– (5,431) – (5,431)

* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available. 

9. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2020

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
USD USD USD USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�
Equities 1,699,330,362 ± ± 1,699,330,362
Participatory Notes ± 8,862,470 ± 8,862,470

1,699,330,362 8,862,470 – 1,708,192,832

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
USD USD USD USD

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�
Equities 1,029,028,373 ± ± 1,029,028,373

1,029,028,373 – – 1,029,028,373

7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�WUDQVIHUV�EHWZHHQ�/HYHO����/HYHO���RU�/HYHO���DVVHWV�KHOG�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�DQG�SULRU�¿QDQFLDO�
year.

1R�LQYHVWPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�FODVVL¿HG�ZLWKLQ�/HYHO���DW�DQ\�WLPH�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�DQG�WKH�SULRU�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU��

Financial Assets and Liabilities not measured at Fair Value 

7KH�¿QDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG� OLDELOLWLHV� QRW�PHDVXUHG� DW� IDLU� YDOXH� WKURXJK� SUR¿W� RU� ORVV� DUH� VKRUW�WHUP�¿QDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG�
¿QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�ZKRVH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�DSSUR[LPDWH�IDLU�YDOXH��&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DUH�FODVVL¿HG�DV�/HYHO���DQG�
DOO�RWKHU�¿QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�QRW�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV�DUH�FODVVL¿HG�DV�/HYHO���LQ�WKH�IDLU�
value hierarchy.

9. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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10. Exchange Rates

The exchange rates used to translate foreign currency balances and foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities to 
US Dollar as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 were as follows:

As at 
31 December 2021

As at 
31 December 2020

Brazilian Real 5.57 5.19
Swiss Franc 0.91 0.89
Chinese Yuan 6.37 6.54
Euro 0.88 0.82
British Sterling Pound 0.74 0.73
Hong Kong Dollar 7.80 7.75
Hungarian Forint - 296.85
Indonesian Rupiah 14,252.50 14,050.00
Indian Rupee 74.34 73.07
Japanese Yen - 103.26
Korean Won 1,188.75 1,086.30
Mexican Nuevo Peso 20.48 19.90
Malaysian Dollar - 4.02
Norwegian Krone 8.81 8.57
Russian Ruble 75.09 73.95
Singapore Dollar - 1.32
Thai Baht - 29.96
Taiwan Dollar 27.67 28.10
South African Rand 15.94 14.70

11. Share Capital

The authorised share capital of the ICAV is 500,000,000,000 redeemable Shares of no par value and 300,002 redeemable 
Management Shares of EUR 1.00 each. Management shares are disclosed by way of this note only and are not included 
anywhere else within these Financial Statements. The Directors have the power to allot Shares in the capital of the Funds on 
VXFK�WHUPV�DQG�LQ�VXFK�PDQQHU�DV�WKH\�PD\�WKLQN�¿W��$OO�FODVVHV�RI�6KDUHV�DUH�XQKHGJHG��

Management Shares do not entitle the holders thereof to any dividend. On a winding up of the Funds, the Management 
Shares entitle the holders thereof to receive the amount paid up thereon but do not otherwise entitle them to participate in 
the assets of the ICAV. Only two of these shares have been issued at the date of incorporation to the Directors and are held 
on behalf of GQG Partners LLC. 
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'XULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������DQG����'HFHPEHU�������WKH�QXPEHU�RI�VKDUHV�LVVXHG��UHGHHPHG�DQG�
outstanding was as follows:

31 December 2021
GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund Shares in issue 

DW�VWDUW�RI 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU

Shares  
issued 

 

Shares  
Redeemed 

 

Shares in issue 
DW�HQG�RI� 

¿QDQFLDO�\HDU
Class A EUR Accumulating 1,910,942 1,012,613 (519,526) 2,404,029
Class A GBP Accumulating 3,000 3,792 ± 6,792
Class A USD Accumulating 2,382,373 1,210,934 (681,059) 2,912,248
Class F EUR Accumulating 9 ± ± 9
Class F GBP Accumulating 8 ± ± 8
Class F USD Accumulating 10 ± ± 10
Class I CHF Accumulating 353,105 153,382 (232,620) 273,867
Class I EUR Accumulating 18,834,895 3,081,923 (5,334,584) 16,582,234
Class I GBP Accumulating 13,600,916 814,596 (1,589,376) 12,826,136
Class I NOK Accumulating 6,894,852 8,673,989 (711,476) 14,857,365
Class I USD Accumulating 51,116,030 11,144,433 (4,904,831) 57,355,632
Class R EUR Accumulating 1,958,039 1,320,580 (490,631) 2,787,988
Class R GBP Accumulating 43,942 194,601 (63,165) 175,378
Class R USD Accumulating 1,598,219 1,336,676 (788,152) 2,146,743
Class S EUR Accumulating 9 6,181,864 (319,724) 5,862,149
Class S GBP Accumulating* ± 3,419,551 (771) 3,418,780
Class S GBP Distributing 8 17,961,911 ± 17,961,919
Class S USD Accumulating 10 4,156,516 ± 4,156,526

98,696,367 60,667,361 (15,635,915) 143,727,813

* Class S GBP Accumulating launched 24 August 2021.

 

 

11. Share Capital (Continued)
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31 December 2020
GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund Shares in issue 

DW�VWDUW�RI 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU

Shares  
issued 

 

Shares  
Redeemed 

 

Shares in issue 
DW�HQG�RI� 

¿QDQFLDO�\HDU
Class A EUR Accumulating 1,445,856 1,088,987 (623,901) 1,910,942
Class A GBP Accumulating 3,000 ± ± 3,000
Class A USD Accumulating 3,168,041 846,831 (1,632,499) 2,382,373
Class F EUR Accumulating* ± 9 ± 9
Class F GBP Accumulating** ± 8 ± 8
Class F USD Accumulating*** ± 10 ± 10
Class I CHF Accumulating 859,271 829,918 (1,336,084) 353,105
Class I EUR Accumulating 9,321,766 12,937,577 (3,424,448) 18,834,895
Class I GBP Accumulating 9,864,622 5,890,242 (2,153,948) 13,600,916
Class I NOK Accumulating 1,401,647 5,689,750 (196,545) 6,894,852
Class I USD Accumulating 37,451,017 23,649,849 (9,984,836) 51,116,030
Class R EUR Accumulating 1,106,934 1,552,900 (701,795) 1,958,039
Class R GBP Accumulating 998 42,944 ± 43,942
Class R USD Accumulating 1,086,116 843,687 (331,584) 1,598,219
Class S EUR Accumulating**** ± 9 ± 9
Class S GBP Distributing***** ± 8 ± 8
Class S USD Accumulating****** ± 10 ± 10

65,709,268 53,372,739 (20,385,640) 98,696,367

* Class F EUR Accumulating launched 15 October 2020.
** Class F GBP Accumulating launched 15 October 2020.
*** Class F USD Accumulating launched 15 October 2020.
**** Class S EUR Accumulating launched 15 October 2020.
***** Class S GBP Distributing launched 15 October 2020.
****** Class S USD Accumulating launched 15 October 2020.
 

31 December 2021
GQG Partners Global Equity Fund Shares in issue 

DW�VWDUW�RI 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU

Shares  
issued 

 

Shares  
Redeemed 

 

Shares in issue 
DW�HQG�RI� 

¿QDQFLDO�\HDU
Class A EUR Accumulating* ± 33,500 ± 33,500
Class A USD Accumulating 4,109,538 635,590 (1,915,257) 2,829,871
Class I EUR Accumulating 12,430,057 2,086,329 (809,822) 13,706,564
Class I GBP Accumulating 100,690 35,571 (33,202) 103,059
Class I JPY Accumulating 7,484,876 1,798,607 (18,831) 9,264,652
Class I USD Accumulating 40,826,759 8,010,288 (5,707,577) 43,129,470
Class P USD Accumulating 10,832,222 80,954 (868,421) 10,044,755
Class R EUR Accumulating 111,776 618,128 (1,910) 727,994
Class R USD Accumulating 3,053,514 3,087,811 (1,778,273) 4,363,052
Class R USD Distributing** ± 11 (1) 10

78,949,432 16,386,789 (11,133,294) 84,202,927

* Class A EUR Accumulating launched 13 December 2021.
** Class R USD Distributing launched 12 April 2021.
 

11. Share Capital (Continued)
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31 December 2020
GQG Partners Global Equity Fund Shares in issue 

DW�VWDUW�RI 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU

Shares  
issued 

 

Shares  
Redeemed 

 

Shares in issue 
DW�HQG�RI� 

¿QDQFLDO�\HDU
Class A USD Accumulating* ± 4,215,206 (105,668) 4,109,538
Class I EUR Accumulating 2,500,000 10,870,331 (940,274) 12,430,057
Class I GBP Accumulating 8,733,401 76,957 (8,709,668) 100,690
Class I JPY Accumulating 2,847,305 4,653,444 (15,873) 7,484,876
Class I USD Accumulating 20,775,684 29,669,028 (9,617,953) 40,826,759
Class P USD Accumulating** ± 10,832,222 ± 10,832,222
Class R EUR Accumulating*** ± 117,350 (5,574) 111,776
Class R USD Accumulating**** ± 3,355,753 (302,239) 3,053,514

34,856,390 63,790,291 (19,697,249) 78,949,432

* Class A USD Accumulating launched 24 July 2020.
** Class P USD Accumulating launched 29 June 2020.
*** Class R EUR Accumulating launched 07 September 2020.
**** Class R USD Accumulating launched 06 July 2020.
 
31 December 2021
GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund^ Shares in issue 

DW�VWDUW�RI 
¿QDQFLDO�\HDU

Shares  
issued 

 

Shares  
Redeemed 

 

Shares in issue 
DW�HQG�RI� 

¿QDQFLDO�\HDU
Class I GBP Accumulating* ± 32,568 (15,271) 17,297
Class I USD Accumulating** ± 7,823 (150) 7,673
Class Q EUR Accumulating*** ± 3,492,066 (627,447) 2,864,619
Class Q GBP Accumulating**** ± 889,945 (9,903) 880,042
Class Q USD Accumulating***** ± 39,577,735 (21,500) 39,556,235

± 44,000,137 (674,271) 43,325,866

^  GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives 
available.
* Class I GBP Accumulating launched 02 March 2021.
** Class I USD Accumulating launched 24 June 2021.
*** Class Q EUR Accumulating launched 02 February 2021.
**** Class Q GBP Accumulating launched 9 June 2021.
***** Class Q USD Accumulating launched 12 February 2021.
 

12 . Distributions

The GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund and GQG Partners Global Equity Fund declared the following 
GLVWULEXWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

GQG Partners Emerging Markets 
Equity Fund

GQG Partners Global 
Equity Fund

31 December 2021 31 December 2021
Class R USD Distributing* - 1
Class S GBP Distributing 5,309,215 -

* Class R USD Distributing launched 12 April 2021.

11. Share Capital (Continued)
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The Directors declared a semi-annual dividend per share on 1 July 2021 of $0.111 totalling $1,690,090 and on 31 December 
2021 of $0.207 totalling $3,619,125 in respect of the GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund. Dividends were paid 
on 8 July 2021 and 10 January 2022 respectively.

The Directors declared a semi-annual dividend per share on 1 July 2021 of $0.027 totalling $0.27 and on 31 December 2021 
of $0.093 totalling $0.93 in respect of the GQG Partners Global Equity Fund. Dividends were paid on 8 July 2021 and 10 
January 2022 respectively.

13. Net Asset Value per Share

31 December 2021

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Class A EUR 
Accumulating

Class A GBP 
Accumulating

Class A USD 
Accumulating

Class F EUR 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value €35,426,365 £95,128 $42,577,987 €95

Shares Outstanding 2,404,029 6,792 2,912,248 9
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* €14.74 £14.01 $14.62 €11.10

Class F GBP 
Accumulating

Class F USD 
Accumulating

Class I CHF 
Accumulating

Class I EUR 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value £80 $108 CHF3,888,796 €263,809,938

Shares Outstanding 8 10 273,867 16,582,234
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £10.29 $10.80 CHF14.20 €15.91

Class I GBP 
Accumulating

Class I NOK 
Accumulating

Class I USD 
Accumulating

Class R EUR 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value £193,228,067 kr2,060,846,014 $982,323,668 €40,209,426

Shares Outstanding 12,826,136 14,857,365 57,355,632 2,787,988
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £15.07 kr138.71 $17.13 €14.42

Class R GBP 
Accumulating

Class R USD 
Accumulating

Class S EUR 
Accumulating

Class S GBP 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value £2,430,068 $31,504,658 €65,421,674 £34,051,665

Shares Outstanding 175,378 2,146,743 5,862,149 3,418,780
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £13.86 $14.68 €11.16 £9.96

12 . Distributions (Continued)



GQG Global UCITS ICAV Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

65

)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Class S GBP 
Distributing

Class S USD 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value £181,864,585 $45,112,328

Shares Outstanding 17,961,919 4,156,526
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £10.13 $10.85

31 December 2020

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Class A EUR 
Accumulating

Class A GBP 
Accumulating

Class A USD 
Accumulating

Class F EUR 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value €26,780,701 £42,449 $35,544,939 €90

Shares Outstanding 1,910,942 3,000 2,382,373 9
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* €14.01 £14.15 $14.92 €10.52

Class F GBP 
Accumulating

Class F USD 
Accumulating

Class I CHF 
Accumulating

Class I EUR 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value £80 $110 CHF4,941,792 €283,268,119

Shares Outstanding 8 10 353,105 18,834,895
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £10.36 $10.99 CHF14.00 €15.04

Class I GBP 
Accumulating

Class I NOK 
Accumulating

Class I USD 
Accumulating

Class R EUR 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value £205,724,394 kr944,517,264 $888,034,527 €26,695,181

Shares Outstanding 13,600,916 6,894,852 51,116,030 1,958,039
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £15.13 kr136.99 $17.37 €13.63

Class R GBP 
Accumulating

Class R USD 
Accumulating

Class S EUR 
Accumulating

Class S GBP 
Distributing

 
Net Asset Value £611,252 $23,789,663 €90 £80

Shares Outstanding 43,942 1,598,219 9 8
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £13.91 $14.89 €10.53 £10.37

13. Net Asset Value per Share (Continued)

31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund (Continued)
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Class S USD 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value $110

Shares Outstanding 10
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* $10.99

31 December 2019

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Class A EUR 
Accumulating

Class A GBP 
Accumulating

Class A USD 
Accumulating

Class I CHF 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value €16,626,828 £33,038 $35,638,037 CHF9,859,543

Shares Outstanding 1,445,856 3,000 3,168,041 859,271
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* €11.50 £11.01 $11.25 CHF11.47

Class I EUR 
Accumulating

Class I GBP 
Accumulating

Class I NOK 
Accumulating

Class I USD 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value €114,359,937 £115,428,552 kr147,474,887 $487,600,865

Shares Outstanding 9,321,766 9,864,622 1,401,647 37,451,017
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* €12.27 £11.70 kr105.22 $13.02

Class R EUR 
Accumulating

Class R GBP 
Accumulating

Class R USD 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value €12,308,764 £10,737 $12,116,030

Shares Outstanding 1,106,934 998 1,086,116
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* €11.12 £10.76 $11.16

13. Net Asset Value per Share (Continued)

31 December 2020 (Continued)

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund (Continued)
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31 December 2021

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Class A EUR 
Accumulating

Class A USD 
Accumulating

Class I EUR 
Accumulating

Class I GBP 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value €338,221 $34,851,167 €190,093,281 £1,369,795

Shares Outstanding 33,500 2,829,871 13,706,564 103,059
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* €10.10 $12.41 €13.87 £13.29

Class I JPY 
Accumulating

Class I USD 
Accumulating

Class P USD 
Accumulating

Class R EUR 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value ¥14,954,665,994 $740,497,439 $133,553,442 €9,302,908

Shares Outstanding 9,264,652 43,129,470 10,044,755 727,994
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* ¥1,614.16 $17.17 $13.30 €12.78

Class R USD 
Accumulating

Class R USD 
Distributing

 
Net Asset Value $55,441,884 $112

Shares Outstanding 4,363,052 10
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* $12.71 $11.14

31 December 2020

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Class A USD 
Accumulating

Class I EUR 
Accumulating

Class I GBP 
Accumulating

Class I JPY 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value $42,938,694 €136,259,158 £1,123,533 ¥9,198,469,138

Shares Outstanding 4,109,538 12,430,057 100,690 7,484,876
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* $10.58 €10.96 £11.16 ¥1,228.94

Class I USD 
Accumulating

Class P USD 
Accumulating

Class R EUR 
Accumulating

Class R USD 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value $603,673,324 $121,610,330 €1,129,244 $32,909,126

Shares Outstanding 40,826,759 10,832,222 111,776 3,053,514
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* $14.56 $11.23 €10.10 $10.78

13. Net Asset Value per Share (Continued)
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31 December 2019

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Class I EUR 
Accumulating

Class I GBP 
Accumulating

Class I JPY 
Accumulating

Class I USD 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value €25,766,494 £86,893,735 ¥3,181,756,970 $261,351,979

Shares Outstanding 2,500,000 8,733,401 2,847,305 20,775,684
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* €10.31 £9.95 ¥1,117.46 $12.58

31 December 2021

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund

Class I GBP 
Accumulating

Class I USD 
Accumulating

Class Q EUR 
Accumulating

Class Q GBP 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value £213,151 $82,242 €36,417,050 £10,047,844

Shares Outstanding 17,297 7,673 2,864,619 880,042
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* £12.32 $10.72 €12.71 £11.42

Class Q USD 
Accumulating

 
Net Asset Value $459,087,154

Shares Outstanding 39,556,235
Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating  
Share* $11.61

*The NAV per Unit for disclosure purposes has been rounded to two decimal places.

14. Related Party Transactions

IAS 24 ‘Related Party Transactions’ requires the disclosure of information relating to material transactions with parties who 
are deemed to be related to the Funds.

The Investment Manager of the ICAV is GQG Partners LLC. Under the terms of the investment management agreement 
the Investment Manager is responsible, subject to the overall supervision and control of the Directors, for the day to day 
investment management of the portfolio attributable to each Fund for which it is investment manager.

Mel Zakaluk, Partner of GQG Partners LLC, is an employee of GQG Partners LLC. Ms Zakaluk was the Chief Operating 
2൶FHU�XQWLO����$XJXVW������DQG�DVVXPHG�WKH�UROH�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2൶FHU�H൵HFWLYH����$XJXVW�������

Xavier Sement, Partner of GQG Partners LLC, is employed as an independent contractor and holds:
In the Emerging Markets Equity Fund the following Units:
• 1,860 units of I EUR Accumulating Share Class. 
 

13. Net Asset Value per Share (Continued)
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In the Global Equity Fund the following Units:
• 1,029 units of I USD Accumulating Share Class 
• 10 units of R USD Distributing Share Class

Mark Barker, Partner of GQG Partners LLC, is employed by an independent contractor and holds:
In the Emerging Markets Equity Fund the following Units:
• 8 units of F GBP Accumulating Share Class
• 9 units of F EUR Accumulating Share Class
• 10 units of F USD Accumulating Share Class
• 8,327 units of I GBP Accumulating Share Class
• 2,547 units of I USD Accumulating Share Class
• 8 units of S GBP Distributing Share Class
• 9 units of S EUR Accumulating Share Class
• 10 units of S USD Accumulating Share Class
 
In the Global Equity Fund the following Units:
• 30,400 units of I GBP Accumulating Share Class
• 2,206 units of I USD Accumulating Share Class
 
In the U.S. Equity Fund the following Units:
• 873 units of I GBP Accumulating Share Class
• 1,000 units of I USD Accumulating Share Class

As at 31 December 2021, there was one nominee account on GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund which had a shareholding of 
84%, that consisted of several underlying shareholders.

Other key contracts

7KH�IHHV�FKDUJHG�E\�DOO�VHUYLFH�SURYLGHUV�DUH�DOVR�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH���DQG�1RWH���WR�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

���� (൶FLHQW�3RUWIROLR�0DQDJHPHQW

The Investment Manager may utilise derivatives and other techniques and instruments (including, but not limited to, options, 
swaps, futures and forwards) whether the intention of providing protection against risks of gaining exposure to certain 
markets, sectors or securities, or otherwise of increasing the return on the Assets of each Fund. Such derivatives and other 
WHFKQLTXHV�DQG�LQVWUXPHQWV�ZLOO�RQO\�EH�XVHG�IRU�H൶FLHQW�SRUWIROLR�PDQDJHPHQW�SXUSRVHV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�FRQGLWLRQV�
and limits laid down by the Central Bank of Ireland. The Investment Manager may also, when facilities become available in 
the relevant markets, lend the Portfolio securities and/or purchase securities subject to repurchase agreements. No securities 
OHQGLQJ�RFFXUUHG�DQG�QR�VHFXULWLHV�ZHUH�SXUFKDVHG�VXEMHFW�WR�UHSXUFKDVH�DJUHHPHQWV�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�

There was an open derivative contract asset USD 23 and an open derivative contract liability USD 5,431 held at the 
Statement of Financial Position date of GQG Partner U.S. Equity Fund. There were no open derivative contracts held at the 
Statement of Financial Position date of GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund and GQG Partners Global Equity 
Fund.

�����6LJQL¿FDQW�(YHQWV�'XULQJ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�<HDU

&29,'����KDV�VLJQL¿FDQWO\�GLVUXSWHG�WKH�JOREDO�HFRQRP\�VLQFH�WKH�¿UVW�TXDUWHU�RI������DQG�UHVXOWHG�LQ�HOHYDWHG�HTXLW\�
market volatility. While many businesses have re-opened and vaccinations are progressing in many parts of the world, we 
believe that the overall extent and duration of COVID-19's impact on businesses and economic activity generally remain 
unclear. 

14. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

After re-opening their economies, countries have continued to experience surges in the rates of COVID-19 infections and 
hospitalizations from the emergence and spread of virus variants. These surges in COVID-19 infections and hospitalizations 
PD\�DGYHUVHO\�D൵HFW�FRQVXPHU�VHQWLPHQW��WKH�GXUDELOLW\�RI�EXVLQHVV�UH�RSHQLQJV�DQG�WKH�SDFH�RI�HFRQRPLF�UHFRYHU\��$V�D�
result, we may witness additional equity market volatility. Market volatility may cause clients to submit redemptions which 
would negatively impact our AUM, revenue and income.

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to evolve, we are unable to predict the full extent to which the pandemic may 
DGYHUVHO\�LPSDFW�RXU�EXVLQHVV�DQG�¿QDQFLDO�UHVXOWV��7KH�XOWLPDWH�LPSDFW�ZLOO�GHSHQG�RQ�QXPHURXV�GHYHORSLQJ�IDFWRUV�WKDW�
remain uncertain and subject to change.

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund was launched on 2 February 2021. 

7KH�IROORZLQJ�VKDUH�FODVVHV�ODXQFKHG�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�IRU�*4*�3DUWQHUV�8�6��(TXLW\�)XQG�

        Share Class Launch Date
        Class Q EUR Accumulating 2 February 2021
        Class Q USD Accumulating 12 February 2021
        Class I GBP Accumulating 2 March 2021
        Class Q GBP Accumulating 9 June 2021
        Class I USD Accumulating 24 June 2021

7KH�IROORZLQJ�VKDUH�FODVVHV�ODXQFKHG�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�IRU�*4*�3DUWQHUV�*OREDO�(TXLW\�)XQG�

        Share Class Launch Date
        Class R USD Distributing 12 April 2021
        Class A EUR Accumulating 13 December 2021

7KH�IROORZLQJ�VKDUH�FODVV�ODXQFKHG�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�IRU�*4*�(PHUJLQJ�0DUNHWV�(TXLW\�)XQG�

        Share Class Launch Date
        Class S GBP Accumulating 24 August 2021

The Prospectus and Supplements were updated on 1 March 2021 for the SFDR language updates.

The Prospectus and Supplements were updated on 14 December 2021.

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�RWKHU�VLJQL¿FDQW�FKDQJHV�GXULQJ�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

���� 6LJQL¿FDQW�(YHQWV�$IWHU�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�<HDU�(QG

The Board of Directors of the Fund and the Investment Manager are monitoring and reacting to this event on behalf of 
the Fund in accordance with their duties to shareholders. The duration and magnitude of the economic impact and market 
reaction to COVID 19 is uncertain. As at 31 December 2021, the funds’ focus on high quality investments has helped us 
navigate through this crisis. 

Uncertainty regarding geopolitical developments may result in increased volatility in global equity markets. Geopolitical 
FRQFHUQV�PD\�LQFOXGH�WUDGH�FRQÀLFWV��FLYLO�XQUHVW��ZDU��WHUURULVW�DFWV��ERUGHU�GLVSXWHV�DQG�RWKHU�GLSORPDWLF�LVVXHV�

(TXLW\�PDUNHWV�KDYH�UHFHQWO\�EHHQ�QHJDWLYHO\�D൵HFWHG�E\�LQFUHDVLQJ�JHRSROLWLFDO�WHQVLRQ��SDUWLFXODUO\�EHWZHHQ�5XVVLD�DQG�
8NUDLQH��$Q\�FKDQJHV�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�D�FRXQWU\¶V�SROLF\�RQ�WD[HV��WDUL൵V��LPSRUW�H[SRUW�UHJXODWLRQV�RU�HFRQRPLF�VDQFWLRQV�
PD\�KDYH�D�IXUWKHU�QHJDWLYH�H൵HFW�RQ�JOREDO�HFRQRPLF�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�HTXLW\�PDUNHWV��7KHVH�FKDQJHV�PD\�KDYH�D�QHJDWLYH�
impact on investor sentiment, the performance of our funds and the ability to manage and exit certain positions. As a result, 
these changes may negatively impact our AUM, revenue and income.

The Board, the Manager and the Investment Manager continue to monitor the sanctions activity globally to ensure the Fund 
is in adherence. We continue to rely on the Administrator to monitor the investor base with respect to sanctions and, if any 
VDQFWLRQHG�LQYHVWRUV�DUH�LGHQWL¿HG��WR�UHPHGLDWH�IROORZLQJ�WKHLU�DSSURSULDWH�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�

�����6LJQL¿FDQW�(YHQWV�'XULQJ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�<HDU��&RQWLQXHG�
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

In response to western sanctions, the Central Bank of Russia has closed local markets to all foreign investors. This closure 
H൵HFWLYHO\�SUHFOXGHV� IRUHLJQ� LQYHVWRUV�� LQFOXGLQJ�*4*�3DUWQHUV�� IURP�EX\LQJ�RU� VHOOLQJ�5XVVLDQ� VHFXULWLHV�RU� UHFHLYLQJ�
dividends on Russian securities. Under these circumstances, the Russian securities in the portfolios for which we determine 
valuations are now being “fair valued” in the absence of true market values. Post year-end fair value determinations by the 
Directors in conjunction with the Investment Manager fair value determinations have resulted in an exposure of less than 1 
basis point in any fund.

)URP���-DQXDU\�WR����$SULO�������HDFK�WKH�)XQG�KDG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�QHW�FOLHQW�DFWLYLW\�
GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund net activity of US$360,596,263
GQG Partners Global Equity Fund net activity of US$106,862,978
GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund net activity of US$100,218,513

 
7KH�1$9�RI�HDFK�)XQG�DV�DW����$SULO������ZDV�
*4*�3DUWQHUV�(PHUJLQJ�0DUNHWV�(TXLW\�)XQG�±�86��������������
*4*�3DUWQHUV�*OREDO�(TXLW\�)XQG�±�86��������������
*4*�3DUWQHUV�8�6��(TXLW\�)XQG�±�86������������

 
7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�IXUWKHU�HYHQWV�DIWHU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG�GDWH��ZKLFK��LQ�WKH�RSLQLRQ�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�,&$9�PD\�
KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

18. Financial Commitments & Contingents

7KH�)XQGV�KDYH�QRW�HQWHUHG�LQWR�DQ\�¿QDQFLDO�FRPPLWPHQWV�DQG�QR�SURYLVLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�PDGH�IRU�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DV�
DW�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

���� $SSURYDO�RI�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2022.

���� 6LJQL¿FDQW�(YHQWV�$IWHU�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�<HDU�(QG��&RQWLQXHG�
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG�31 December 2021

7KH�7RWDO�([SHQVH�5DWLRV� �³7(5´�� LQFOXGHG�EHORZ�DUH� FDOFXODWHG� DFFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH� VSHFL¿FDWLRQV�RI� WKH� ³*XLGHOLQHV�RQ� WKH�
calculation and disclosure of the TER issued by the Swiss Funds & Asset Management Association, SFAMA.  

7KH�DYHUDJH�7RWDO�([SHQVH�5DWLR�WDEOH�VKRZV�WKH�DFWXDO�RSHUDWLRQDO�H[SHQVHV�LQFXUUHG�E\�WKH�)XQGV�IRU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�year ended 
31 December 2021 expressed as an annualised percentage of the average net asset value (NAV) of that Fund. 

 
GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

                   Financial Year ended              Financial Year ended
    31 December 2021  31 December 2020

Share Class TER % TER %
Total Class A USD 1.65% 1.68%
Total Class A GBP 1.65% 1.68%
Total Class A EUR 1.65% 1.68%
Total Class F USD 1.30% 1.01%
Total Class F GBP 1.30% 1.01%
Total Class F EUR 1.30% 1.01%
Total Class I USD 1.05% 1.08%
Total Class I GBP 1.05% 1.08%
Total Class I EUR 1.05% 1.07%
Total Class I CHF 1.05% 1.08%
Total Class I NOK 1.05% 1.07%
Total Class R USD 1.05% 1.08%
Total Class R GBP 1.05% 1.08%
Total Class R EUR 1.05% 1.08%
Total Class S USD 0.90% 0.64%
Total Class S GBP Accumulating 0.90% 0.64%
Total Class S GBP Distributing* 0.90% -
Total Class S EUR 0.90% 0.64%

*Class S GBP Accumulating launched 24 August 2021. 
 
GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Financial Year ended
31 December 2021

Financial Year ended
31 December 2020

Share Class TER % TER %
Total Class A USD 1.35% 1.35%
Total Class A EUR* 1.35% -
Total Class I USD 0.75% 0.75%
Total Class I GBP 0.75% 0.75%
Total Class I EUR 0.75% 0.75%
Total Class I JPY 0.75% 0.75%
Total Class P USD 0.30% 0.30%
Total Class R USD Accumulating 0.75% 0.75%
Total Class R USD Distributing** 0.75% -
Total Class R EUR 0.75% 0.75%
 

*Class A EUR Accumulating launched 13 December 2021.
**Class R USD Distributing launched 12 April 2021.
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GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund*

Financial Year ended
31 December 2021

Share Class TER %
Total Class I USD 0.55%
Total Class I GBP 0.55%
Total Class Q USD 0.45%
Total Class Q EUR 0.45%
Total Class Q GBP 0.45%

 

*GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021.
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)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG�31 December 2021

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

 
Classes

Inception 
Date

Inception 
Price

 
����������

 
����������

 
1 Year

Since 
Inception 

pa**
Class A USD Accumulating 17/07/2017 $10.00 $14.92 $14.62   (2.01%)   8.89% 
Class A GBP Accumulating 18/07/2017 £10.00 £14.15   £14.01 (0.99%)   7.86% 
Class A EUR Accumulating 17/07/2017 €10.00 €14.01 €14.74   5.21%   9.09% 
Class F USD Accumulating 15/10/2020 $10.00 $10.99 $10.80 (1.73%)   6.57% 
Class F GBP Accumulating 15/10/2020 £10.00 £10.36 £10.29 (0.68%)   2.39% 
Class F EUR Accumulating 15/10/2020 €10.00 €10.52 €11.10   5.51%   9.00% 
Class I USD Accumulating 15/02/2017 $10.00 $17.37 $17.13 (1.38%)   11.68% 
Class I GBP Accumulating 06/06/2017 £10.00 £15.13 £15.07 (0.40%)   9.39% 
Class I EUR Accumulating 15/02/2017 €10.00 €15.04 €15.91   5.78%  10.00% 
Class I CHF Accumulating 10/08/2017 CHF10.00 CHF14.00 CHF14.20   1.43%   8.31% 
Class I NOK Accumulating 18/06/2019 kr 100.00 kr 136.99 kr 138.71   1.26%   13.76% 
Class R USD Accumulating 23/08/2017 $10.00 $14.89 $14.68 (1.41%)   9.21% 
Class R GBP Accumulating 31/08/2017 £10.00 £13.91 £13.86 (0.36%   7.82% 
Class R EUR Accumulating 17/05/2018 €10.00 €13.63 €14.42   5.80%   10.63% 
Class S USD Accumulating 15/10/2020 $10.00 $10.99 $10.85 (1.27%)   6.97% 
Class S GBP Accumulating 24/08/2021 £10.00 - £9.96 - 0.40%
Class S GBP Distributing*** 15/10/2020 £10.00 £10.37 £10.13 (0.12%)   2.94% 
Class S EUR Accumulating 15/10/2020 €10.00 €10.53 €11.16 5.98%   9.49% 

***Distributing Share Classes Return calculated on Total Return Basis; NAV listed on the Net Asset Value.

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Classes Inception 
Date

Inception 
Price

 
����������

 
����������

 
1 Year

Since 
Inception 

pa**
Class A USD Accumulating 24/07/2020 $10.00 $10.58 $12.41 17.30%   16.21%   
Class A EUR Accumulating 13/12/2021 €10.00 - €10.10 - 1.00%
Class I USD Accumulating 07/01/2019 $10.00 $14.56 $17.17 17.93%   19.88%   
Class I GBP Accumulating 26/07/2019 £10.00 £11.16 £13.29 19.09%   12.40%   
Class I EUR Accumulating 02/12/2019 €10.00 €10.96 €13.87 26.55%   17.03%   
Class I JPY Accumulating 03/10/2019 ¥1,000.00 ¥1,228.94 ¥1,614.16 31.35%   23.77%   
Class P USD Accumulating 30/06/2020 $10.00 $11.23 $13.30 18.43%   20.89%   
Class R USD Accumulating 06/07/2020 $10.00 $10.78 $12.71 17.90%  17.50%   
Class R USD Distributing*** 12/04/2021 $10.00 - $11.14 -   12.62%   
Class R EUR Accumulating 07/09/2020 €10.00 €10.10 €12.78 26.53% 20.57%   

***Distributing Share Classes Return calculated on Total Return Basis; NAV listed on the Net Asset Value.

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund

Classes Inception 
Date

Inception 
Price

 
����������

 
1 Year

Since 

Class I USD Accumulating 24/06/2021 $10.00   $10.72   -   7.20%   
Class I GBP Accumulating 02/03/2021 £10.00   £12.32   -   23.20%   
Class Q USD Accumulating 12/02/2021 $10.00   $11.61   -   16.10%   
Class Q GBP Accumulating 09/06/2021 £10.00   £11.42   -   14.20%   
Class Q EUR Accumulating 02/02/2021 €10.00   €12.71   -   27.10%   

*Swiss regulations require the performance data to be calculated on a calendar year basis.
** Annualised if more than one year.
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Disclaimer (in English and in French) 

Past performance is no indication of current or future performance, and the performance data do not take account of the 
commissions and costs incurred on the issue and redemption of shares. 

La performance historique ne représente pas un indicateur de performance actuelle ou future et les données de performance ne 
tiennent pas compte des commissions et frais perçus lors de l'émission et du rachat des actions.  
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GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

As at 31 December 2021

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV
Fair Value 

USD
��RI 

Net Assets
7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH

Equities: 97.86% (31 Dec 2020: 96.74%)

Banks: 16.56% (31 Dec 2020: 8.28%)
6,673,185 Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria SA    39,886,461   1.69

44,887,947 Bank Central Asia    22,991,196   0.98
99,581 Capitec Bank Holdings Ltd    12,747,118   0.54

19,831,762 China Construction Bank    13,733,995   0.58
9,580,750 China Merchants Bank    74,397,011   3.16
1,570,744 HDFC Bank    31,260,353   1.33
3,389,181 ICICI Bank    33,745,616   1.43
5,974,272 Itau Unibanco Holding SA    22,470,556   0.95

302,469 Sberbank of Russia ADR    4,854,628   0.21
19,115,785 Sberbank of Russia    74,748,572   3.17
5,497,644 State Bank of India    34,053,515   1.44

313,920 TCS Group Holding PLC GDR    25,512,852   1.08
Total Banks    390,401,873   16.56

Beverages: 6.10% (31 Dec 2020: 8.44%)
685,388 Heineken NV    77,141,866   3.27
90,905 Kweichow Moutai Co    29,312,662   1.25

1,065,627 Wuliangye Yibin    37,321,669   1.58
Total Beverages    143,776,197   6.10

Commercial Services: 0.14% (31 Dec 2020: 2.54%)
756,311 Centre Testing International Group Co    3,196,552   0.14

Total Commercial Services    3,196,552   0.14

Computers: 8.73% (31 Dec 2020: 6.61%)
5,044,910 Infosys ADR    127,686,672   5.42
1,829,463 Infosys    46,459,118   1.97

629,806 Tata Consultancy Services    31,673,030   1.34
Total Computers    205,818,820   8.73

&RVPHWLFV�3HUVRQDO�&DUH������������'HF�������������
580,851 Unilever PLC    31,117,418   1.32

7RWDO�&RVPHWLFV�3HUVRQDO�&DUH    31,117,418   1.32

'LYHUVL¿HG�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV������������'HF�������������
468,003 Bajaj Finance    43,927,743   1.86

1,034,874 Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing    60,439,705   2.57
3,640,179 Housing Development Finance Corp    126,657,142   5.37

7RWDO�'LYHUVL¿HG�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV    231,024,590   9.80

Electric: 0.66% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
1,173,411 China Yangtze Power Co Ltd    4,189,765   0.18
1,135,500 CLP Holdings    11,467,785   0.48

Total Electric    15,657,550   0.66
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV     
Fair Value 

USD 
��RI 

Net Assets
  7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH        
          

  Equities: 97.86% (31 Dec 2020: 96.74%) (continued)        
          

Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 0.24%)

Food: 1.66% (31 Dec 2020: 1.03%)
727,304 Unilever ADR    39,121,682   1.66

Total Food    39,121,682   1.66

Healthcare-Services: 0.49% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
625,951 WuXi AppTec    11,675,229   0.49

Total Healthcare-Services    11,675,229   0.49

+RXVHKROG�3URGXFWV�:DUHV������������'HF�������������

Insurance: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 2.55%)

Internet: 2.34% (31 Dec 2020: 18.05%)
454,091 JD.com ADR    31,818,156   1.35
400,419 Tencent Holdings    23,457,548   0.99

Total Internet    55,275,704   2.34

,URQ�6WHHO������������'HF�������������
15,781,126 Baoshan Iron & Steel Co    17,773,160   0.75
8,208,545 Eregli Demir ve Celik Fabrikalari TAS    17,473,175   0.74
1,257,833 JSW Steel    11,099,325   0.47

513,178 Severstal PJSC    10,970,396   0.47
1,232,123 Tata Steel    18,422,427   0.78

741,009 Vale ADR    10,388,946   0.44
2,555,515 Vale SA    35,768,034   1.52

7RWDO�,URQ�6WHHO    121,895,463   5.17

Materials: 2.81% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
1,270,806 Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof Technology Co Ltd    10,530,249   0.45
1,819,061 Hindalco Industries Ltd    11,637,141   0.49

181,518 Polyus PJSC    31,607,236   1.34
50,030 POSCO    11,552,669   0.49
22,550 Ternium SA ADR    981,376   0.04

Total Materials    66,308,671   2.81

Mining: 2.82% (31 Dec 2020: 3.85%)
434,088 Newmont Corp    26,922,138   1.14

1,186,348 Nornickel ADR    36,693,744   1.56
9,495 Nornickel PJSC    2,886,609   0.12

1 Polyus GDR    88 ������������������±
Total Mining    66,502,579   2.82

Oil & Gas: 16.86% (31 Dec 2020: 3.11%)
13,959,343 Gazprom PJSC    63,817,326   2.71

76,578 Lukoil PJSC ADR    6,853,731   0.29
539,654 Lukoil PJSC    47,217,816   2.00
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV     
Fair Value 

USD 
��RI 

Net Assets
  7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH        
          

  Equities: 97.86% (31 Dec 2020: 96.74%) (continued)        
          

  Oil & Gas: 16.86% (31 Dec 2020: 3.11%) (continued)        
78,049,515 PetroChina    34,732,938   1.47
5,844,663 Petroleo Brasileiro SA ADR    64,174,400   2.72
8,410,063 Petroleo Brasileiro SA Pref    42,956,246   1.82

121,237 Reliance Industries GDR    7,753,106   0.33
2,295,424 Reliance Industries    73,126,533   3.10
7,130,929 Rosneft Oil Co PJSC    56,970,509   2.42

Total Oil & Gas    397,602,605   16.86

Pharmaceuticals: 0.97% (31 Dec 2020: 1.82%)
2,015,327 Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd    22,927,923   0.97

Total Pharmaceuticals    22,927,923   0.97

Private Equity: 1.10% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
1,410,915 Macquarie Korea Infrastructure Fund    16,675,799   0.71

165,086 SK Square Co Ltd    9,221,207   0.39
Total Private Equity    25,897,006   1.10

Retail: 1.92% (31 Dec 2020: 1.59%)
1,328,027 Li Ning Co    14,536,246   0.62
8,270,953 Wal-Mart de Mexico SAB de CV    30,736,090   1.30

Total Retail    45,272,336   1.92

Semiconductors: 16.51% (31 Dec 2020: 18.94%)
60,933 ASML Holding NV    49,025,348   2.08
64,046 Lam Research Corp    46,058,681   1.95
89,418 Qualcomm Inc    16,351,870   0.69

1,219,419 Samsung Electronics    80,320,090   3.41
340,864 Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing ADR    41,009,348   1.74

7,037,092 Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing    156,425,040   6.64
Total Semiconductors    389,190,377   16.51

6RIWZDUH������������'HF�������������
88,988 Kaspi.KZ JSC GDR    10,322,608   0.44
37,412 NetEase Inc ADR    3,807,793   0.16

905,401 NetEase Inc    18,287,880   0.77
7RWDO�6RIWZDUH    32,418,281   1.37

Telecommunications: 0.53% (31 Dec 2020: 2.06%)
255,368 SK Telecom Co    12,438,113   0.53

Total Telecommunications    12,438,113   0.53

Transportation: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 0.69%)

Total Equities    2,307,518,969   97.86

Participatory Notes: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 0.50%)
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

     7RWDO�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�7KURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV    2,307,518,969   97.86

Fair Value 
USD

��RI 
Net Assets

7RWDO�9DOXH�RI�,QYHVWPHQWV    2,307,518,969   97.86
(Cost: USD 2,023,858,637)

Cash    77,600,008   3.29

Other Net Liabilities    (27,158,092)   (1.15)

1HW�$VVHWV�$WWULEXWDEOH�WR�+ROGHUV�RI�5HGHHPDEOH�3DUWLFLSDWLQJ�6KDUHV    2,357,960,885   100.00

3RUWIROLR�&ODVVL¿FDWLRQ��8QDXGLWHG� ��RI�7RWDO�DVVHWV

7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�DGPLWWHG�WR�R൶FLDO�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH�   96.38
Other assets   3.62

  100.00
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GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

As at 31 December 2021

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV
Fair Value 

USD
��RI 

Net Assets
7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH

Equities: 96.16% (31 Dec 2020: 97.91%)

$XWR�0DQXIDFWXUHUV: 1.09% (31 Dec 2020: 1.03%)
136,480 Daimler AG    10,502,302   0.79
107,683 Daimler Truck Holding AG    3,958,642   0.30

7RWDO�$XWR�0DQXIDFWXUHUV    14,460,944   1.09

Banks: 11.08% (31 Dec 2020: 8.97%)
3,835,268 Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria SA    22,923,876   1.73

389,101 BNP Paribas SA    26,920,593   2.03
690,481 China Merchants Bank    5,361,764   0.41
493,198 ICICI Bank ADR    9,760,388   0.74

2,585,532 Itau Unibanco Holding SA    9,724,757   0.73
181,028 J.P. Morgan Chase & Co    28,665,784   2.17
197,181 Morgan Stanley    19,355,287   1.46
106,353 Royal Bank of Canada    11,287,316   0.85
788,282 Sberbank of Russia ADR    12,651,926   0.96

Total Banks    146,651,691   11.08

Beverages: 2.27% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
217,583 Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV    13,171,179   1.00
59,345 Coca-Cola Co    3,513,818   0.27

118,161 Heineken NV    13,299,270   1.00
Total Beverages    29,984,267   2.27

Chemicals: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 1.65%)

Commercial Services: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 1.75%)

&RVPHWLFV�3HUVRQDO�&DUH: 4.16% (31 Dec 2020: 3.71%)
257,343 Procter & Gamble Co    42,096,168   3.18
242,737 Unilever PLC    13,003,935   0.98

7RWDO�&RVPHWLFV�3HUVRQDO�&DUH    55,100,103   4.16

'LYHUVL¿HG�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV: 4.37% (31 Dec 2020: 5.65%)
267,107 Visa Inc    57,884,758   4.37

7RWDO�'LYHUVL¿HG�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV    57,884,758   4.37

Electric: 2.28% (31 Dec 2020: 2.87%)
945,391 E.ON SE    13,122,587   0.99

1,214,063 Enel SpA    9,739,057   0.74
126,077 Exelon Corp    7,282,207   0.55

Total Electric    30,143,851   2.28

Electrical Components & Equipment: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 0.74%)
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV     
Fair Value 

USD 
��RI 

Net Assets
  7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH        
          

  Equities: 96.16% (31 Dec 2020: 97.91%) (continued)        
          

Food: 0.72% (31 Dec 2020: 4.05%)
68,304 Nestle    9,552,965   0.72

Total Food    9,552,965   0.72

Gas: 1.90% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
112,827 Atmos Energy    11,820,885   0.90
924,879 National Grid PLC    13,267,319   1.00

Total Gas    25,088,204   1.90

Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 3.76%)

Healthcare-Services: 7.05% (31 Dec 2020: 6.12%)
45,289 Humana Inc    21,007,755   1.59

144,097 UnitedHealth Group    72,356,868   5.46
Total Healthcare-Services    93,364,623   7.05

Insurance: 1.33% (31 Dec 2020: 2.62%)
172,095 Progressive Corp    17,665,552   1.33

Total Insurance    17,665,552   1.33

Internet: 6.87% (31 Dec 2020: 16.08%)
31,449 Alphabet Inc    91,000,512   6.87

Total Internet    91,000,512   6.87

,URQ�6WHHO: 1.63% (31 Dec 2020: 0.86%)
232,962 ArcelorMittal    7,415,180   0.56
443,717 ArcelorMittal SA    14,218,061   1.07

7RWDO�,URQ�6WHHO    21,633,241   1.63

Media: 3.44% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
69,796 Charter Communications    45,504,898   3.44

Total Media    45,504,898   3.44

Mining: 3.17% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
4,767,535 Glencore PLC    24,195,890   1.83

286,898 Newmont Corp    17,793,414   1.34
Total Mining    41,989,304   3.17

Oil & Gas: 12.75% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
554,210 Devon Energy Corp    24,412,951   1.84
307,989 Enbridge Inc    12,030,307   0.91
652,543 Exxon Mobil    39,929,106   3.02
187,003 Lukoil PJSC ADR    16,736,768   1.27
982,589 Occidental Petroleum    28,485,255   2.15

1,398,931 Petroleo Brasileiro SA ADR    15,360,262   1.16
3,601,477 Petroleo Brasileiro SA Pref    18,395,336   1.39
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV     
Fair Value 

USD 
��RI 

Net Assets
  7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH        
          

  Equities: 96.16% (31 Dec 2020: 97.91%) (continued)        
          

  Oil & Gas: 12.75% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%) (continued)        
1,666,786 Rosneft Oil Co PJSC GDR    13,404,293   1.01

Total Oil & Gas    168,754,278   12.75

Pharmaceuticals: 13.04% (31 Dec 2020: 14.47%)
1,153,560 AstraZeneca ADR    67,194,870   5.08

85,764 Eli Lilly and Co    23,689,732   1.79
164,802 Johnson & Johnson    28,192,678   2.13
326,029 Novo Nordisk    36,685,469   2.77
40,379 Roche Holding AG    16,799,472   1.27

Total Pharmaceuticals    172,562,221   13.04

Private Equity: 3.38% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
149,318 Blackstone Group Inc    19,320,256   1.46
340,797 KKR & Co Inc    25,389,376   1.92

Total Private Equity    44,709,632   3.38

REITS: 0.00% (31 Dec 2020: 1.64%)

Retail: 7.03% (31 Dec 2020: 0.00%)
164,565 Target Corp    38,086,924   2.88
379,657 Walmart Inc    54,932,571   4.15

Total Retail    93,019,495   7.03

Semiconductors: 3.86% (31 Dec 2020: 7.54%)
16,493 ASML Holding NV    13,269,904   1.00

314,414 Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing ADR    37,827,149   2.86
Total Semiconductors    51,097,053   3.86

6RIWZDUH: 4.74% (31 Dec 2020: 14.40%)
29,948 AppLovin Corp    2,822,898   0.21

178,322 Microsoft Corp    59,973,255   4.53
7RWDO�6RIWZDUH    62,796,153   4.74

Total Equities    1,272,963,745   96.16

     7RWDO�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�7KURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV    1,272,963,745   96.16
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

Fair Value 
USD

��RI 
Net Assets

7RWDO�9DOXH�RI�,QYHVWPHQWV    1,272,963,745   96.16
(Cost: USD 1,103,135,925)

Cash    43,550,427   3.29

Other Net Assets    7,351,339   0.55

1HW�$VVHWV�$WWULEXWDEOH�WR�+ROGHUV�RI�5HGHHPDEOH�3DUWLFLSDWLQJ�6KDUHV    1,323,865,511   100.00

3RUWIROLR�&ODVVL¿FDWLRQ (Unaudited) ��RI�7RWDO�DVVHWV

7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�DGPLWWHG�WR�R൶FLDO�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH�   95.55
Other assets   4.45

  100.00
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GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund*

As at 31 December 2021

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV
Fair Value 

USD
��RI 

Net Assets
7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH

Equities: 97.83% 

Banks: 5.21% 
105,049 J.P. Morgan Chase & Co    16,634,509   3.23
103,916 Morgan Stanley    10,200,395   1.98

Total Banks    26,834,904   5.21

Beverages: 3.20% 
271,777 Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV ADR    16,456,097   3.20

Total Beverages    16,456,097   3.20

&RVPHWLFV�3HUVRQDO�&DUH��������
129,820 Procter & Gamble Co    21,235,955   4.13

7RWDO�&RVPHWLFV�3HUVRQDO�&DUH    21,235,955   4.13

'LYHUVL¿HG�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV��������
148,317 Visa Inc    32,141,777   6.25

7RWDO�'LYHUVL¿HG�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV    32,141,777   6.25

Electric: 0.66% 
59,087 Exelon Corp    3,412,865   0.66

Total Electric    3,412,865   0.66

Food: 2.52% 
195,652 Mondelez International Inc    12,973,684   2.52

Total Food    12,973,684   2.52

Gas: 3.21% 
157,901 Atmos Energy    16,543,288   3.21

Total Gas    16,543,288   3.21

Healthcare-Services: 11.12% 
33,824 Humana Inc    15,689,600   3.05

105,551 Syneos Health    10,837,977   2.11
61,093 UnitedHealth Group    30,677,239   5.96

Total Healthcare-Services    57,204,816   11.12

Internet: 11.21% 
16,123 Alphabet Inc    46,653,352   9.07
32,735 Facebook    11,010,417   2.14

Total Internet    57,663,769   11.21

,URQ�6WHHO��������
356,624 ArcelorMittal    11,351,342   2.21

7RWDO�,URQ�6WHHO    11,351,342   2.21

Media: 4.69% 
37,020 Charter Communications    24,135,929   4.69

Total Media    24,135,929   4.69
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund*

Holdings )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV     
Fair Value 

USD 
��RI 

Net Assets
  7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�UHFRJQLVHG�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH        
          

  Equities: 97.83%  (continued)        
          

Mining: 2.22% 
184,207 Newmont Corp    11,424,518   2.22

Total Mining    11,424,518   2.22

Oil & Gas: 11.43% 
430,278 Devon Energy Corp    18,953,746   3.68
385,042 Exxon Mobil    23,560,720   4.58
561,555 Occidental Petroleum    16,279,479   3.17

Total Oil & Gas    58,793,945   11.43

Pharmaceuticals: 8.09% 
240,783 AstraZeneca ADR    14,025,610   2.73
42,537 Eli Lilly and Co    11,749,570   2.28
92,612 Johnson & Johnson    15,843,135   3.08

Total Pharmaceuticals    41,618,315   8.09

Private Equity: 3.80% 
71,467 Blackstone Group Inc    9,247,115   1.80

138,205 KKR & Co Inc    10,296,273   2.00
Total Private Equity    19,543,388   3.80

Retail: 8.46% 
78,645 Target Corp    18,201,599   3.54

175,139 Walmart Inc    25,340,862   4.92
Total Retail    43,542,461   8.46

Semiconductors: 2.96% 
126,460 Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing ADR    15,214,403   2.96

Total Semiconductors    15,214,403   2.96

6RIWZDUH��������
47,919 AppLovin Corp    4,516,845   0.88
85,366 Microsoft Corp    28,710,293   5.58

7RWDO�6RIWZDUH    33,227,138   6.46

Total Equities    503,318,594   97.83

Financial Derivative Instruments: 0.00%  

Forward Currency Contracts: 0.00% 

Counterparty
Currency 
Buy Amount

Currency 
Sell Amount

Maturity 
Date

Unrealised  
Gain  
USD

��RI 
Net Assets

Northern Trust EUR 3,826 USD 4,334 04/01/2022   23 ������������������±
Total Unrealised Gains on Forward Currency Contracts    23                   –

     Total Financial Derivative Instruments    23                   –
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As at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund*

     7RWDO�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�7KURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV    503,318,617   97.83

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR¿W�RU�ORVV

Financial Derivative Instruments: 0.00% 

Forward Currency Contracts: 0.00% 

Counterparty
Currency 
Buy Amount

Currency 
Sell Amount

Maturity 
Date

Unrealised  
Loss  
USD

��RI 
Net Assets

Northern Trust USD 19,677 GBP 14,640 04/01/2022   (139) ������������������±
Northern Trust USD 1,006,078 EUR 888,335 04/01/2022   (5,292) ������������������±

Total Unrealised Losses on Forward Currency Contracts    (5,431)                   –

     Total Financial Derivative Instruments    (5,431)                   –

     7RWDO�)LQDQFLDO�/LDELOLWLHV�DW�)DLU�9DOXH�7KURXJK�3UR¿W�RU�/RVV    (5,431)                   –

Fair Value 
USD

��RI 
Net Assets

7RWDO�9DOXH�RI�,QYHVWPHQWV    503,313,186   97.83
(Cost: USD 488,639,884)

Cash    12,027,320   2.34

Other Net Liabilities    (852,167)   (0.17)

1HW�$VVHWV�$WWULEXWDEOH�WR�+ROGHUV�RI�5HGHHPDEOH�3DUWLFLSDWLQJ�6KDUHV    514,488,339   100.00

3RUWIROLR�&ODVVL¿FDWLRQ��8QDXGLWHG� ��RI�7RWDO�DVVHWV

7UDQVIHUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�DGPLWWHG�WR�R൶FLDO�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH�RU�WUDGHG�RQ�UHJXODWHG�PDUNHW   97.37
Other assets   2.63

  100.00
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GQG Partners Emerging Markets Equity Fund

)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Only the top 20 purchases and sales or those greater than 1% of the total value of purchases and sales have been included in the 
schedule of portfolio changes.

Purchases
Cost 

US$'000
JD.com ADR 86,287
NVIDIA Corp 83,003
Heineken NV 80,427
Samsung Electronics 78,421
China Merchants Bank 77,769
Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing 73,730
Alibaba Group Holding 72,611
Meituan Dianping 70,394
Petroleo Brasileiro SA 67,193
Gazprom PJSC 59,479
Lam Research Corp 57,405
Rosneft Oil Co PJSC 54,892
Housing Development Finance Corp 54,611
Meta Platforms 53,596
NetEase Inc ADR 51,418
Infosys ADR 49,201
WuXi AppTec 46,386
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co 45,254
Lukoil PJSC 44,164
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Pref 43,191
EPAM Systems Inc 42,636
Country Garden Services Holdings Co 40,151
Unilever ADR 38,288
Yum China Holdings Inc 37,082
Bajaj Finance 36,727
PetroChina 36,491
Banco Bradesco SA 35,962
Tencent Holdings 35,670
Wal-Mart de Mexico SAB de CV 34,722
Unilever PLC 34,131
Itau Unibanco Holding SA 33,861
HDFC Bank 32,029
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing 31,562
Monolithic Power Systems Inc 30,237
Broadcom Inc 29,271

Sales
Proceeds 
US$'000

NVIDIA Corp 166,401
Samsung Electronics 94,794
JD.com ADR 93,603
MercadoLibre 80,210
Tencent Holdings 77,774
Meituan Dianping 75,338
Alibaba Group Holding 66,503
Meta Platforms 64,379
EPAM Systems Inc 57,737
NetEase Inc 56,099
Ping An Insurance Group of China 53,932
Wuliangye Yibin 53,918
ASML Holding NV 43,833
Sea ADR 42,360
NetEase Inc ADR 40,590
Yum China Holdings Inc 39,446
Monolithic Power Systems Inc 37,798
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 37,726
GDS Holdings ADR 35,162
Banco Bradesco SA 30,042
Broadcom Inc 29,391
WuXi AppTec 27,544
Country Garden Services Holdings Co 27,275
Kweichow Moutai Co 26,591
Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing 26,142
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co 25,703
Magazine Luiza 23,779
Hindustan Unilever 23,257
ASML Holding NV 23,206
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GQG Partners Global Equity Fund

)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Only the top 20 purchases and sales or those greater than 1% of the total value of purchases and sales have been included in the 
schedule of portfolio changes.

Purchases
Cost 

US$'000
Walmart Inc 54,008
Charter Communications 51,859
Target Corp 45,830
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing 43,438
Exxon Mobil 41,396
Procter & Gamble Co 39,931
Visa Inc 36,716
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. 34,122
Salesforce.com inc 34,071
Alphabet Inc 32,559
Blackstone Group Inc 31,931
Occidental Petroleum 30,188
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co 29,711
Newmont Corp 29,669
NVIDIA Corp 29,207
Chevron Corp 28,266
Johnson & Johnson 27,856
Glencore PLC 24,674
Vale SA 23,663
Advanced Micro Devices ltd 23,581
Humana Inc 22,692
ASML Holding NV 22,062
HDFC Bank 20,916
Itau Unibanco Holding SA 20,458
Microsoft Corp 20,174
JD.com Inc 19,449
Facebook 19,434
BNP Paribas SA 19,376
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Pref 19,181
Daimler AG 18,863
L3 Harris Technolo 18,235
Lukoil PJSC 17,430
Progresive Corp 17,115
Roche Holdings 16,317
Royal Bank of Canada 16,200
Banco Bradesco SA 16,163
ArcelorMittalSA 16,110
Alibaba Group Holding ADR 16,072
Samsung Electronic 15,717
Petroleo Brasileiro SA 15,711
Lennar Corp 15,381

Sales
Proceeds 
US$'000

NVIDIA Corp 111,707
Amazon.com 71,946
Facebook 61,957
Bank of America 47,841
Adobe 47,016
Salesforce.com inc 46,481
Advanced Micro Devices ltd 44,326
Nestle 43,941
Microsoft Corp 43,493
Abbott laboratories 42,562
Servicenow Inc 42,179
Procter & Gamble Co 38,549
Mastercard 34,037
Tencent Hldgs Inc 29,959
Chevron Corp 27,575
Enel SpA 26,036
Samsung Electronic 25,797
Humana Inc 23,719
Vale SA 22,929
Blackstone Group Inc 22,282
CMS Energy Corp 21,926
L3 Harris Technolo 20,916
HDFC Bank 20,901
Volkswagen AG Pref 20,715
Paypal Holdings In 19,968
Eli Lilly and Co 19,652
Morgan Stanley 19,215
Bristol-Myrs Squib 18,503
Air Liquide 17,942
Banco Santander SA 17,765
Novo Nordisk 17,512
Progresive Corp 17,408
Abbvie Inc 16,635
Equinix Inc 16,402
JD.com Inc 15,991
Target Corp 15,246
Alibaba Group Holding ADR 14,961
ASML Holding NV 14,750
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GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund

)RU�WKH�¿QDQFLDO�SHULRG�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

Only the top 20 purchases and sales or those greater than 1% of the total value of purchases and sales have been included in the 
schedule of portfolio changes.

Purchases
Cost 

US$'000
Alphabet Inc 45,862
Microsoft Corp 36,296
Visa Inc 31,012
UnitedHealth Group 27,181
Walmart Inc 24,928
Charter Communications 24,639
Target Corp 24,371
Exxon Mobil 23,929
Procter & Gamble Co 21,372
Blackstone Group Inc 20,641
Johnson & Johnson 17,705
NVIDIA Corp 17,457
Devon Energy Corp 17,439
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co 17,388
Occidental Petroleum 17,307
KKR & Co Inc 17,161
Humana Inc 17,063
Amazon.com 16,432
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV 16,193
Atmos Energy 15,715
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing 15,377
Morgan Stanley 14,716
salesforce.com 14,710
AstraZeneca 13,494
Advanced Micro Devices Inc 12,948
Meta Platforms 12,932
Mondelez International Inc 12,686
Adobe 12,371
ArcelorMittal 12,045
Bank of America Corp 11,254
Newmont Corp 11,169
Eli Lilly and Co 10,782
Syneos Health 10,322

Sales
Proceeds 
US$'000

NVIDIA Corp 18,191
Amazon.com 16,079
salesforce.com 13,390
Advanced Micro Devices Inc 11,661
Bank of America Corp 11,304
Adobe 10,910
Blackstone Group Inc 10,438
Microsoft Corp 8,881
Home Depot Inc 6,330
KKR & Co Inc 6,321
ZoomInfo Technologies Inc 5,193
Target Corp 5,127
Morgan Stanley 4,894
Nasdaq 4,428
ServiceNow Inc 4,308
Meta Platforms 2,319
Johnson & Johnson 2,290
Abbott Laboratories 2,086
Goldman Sachs Group 2,022
Mastercard 1,824
L3Harris Technologies 1,800
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Net Asset Value Reconciliation

7KH�UHFRQFLOLDWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�WKH�1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�VKDUHKROGHU�GHDOLQJ�SXUSRVHV�DQG�WKH�1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�
purposes is shown below.

As at 31 December 2021

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2021
Net Asset Value per dealing valuation 2,357,956,474
Adjustment for unamortised establishment costs^ 153
$GMXVWPHQW�IRU�VLJQL¿FDQW�GHDOV�SODFHG�RQ�WUDGH�GDWH�UHÀHFWHG�LQ�FXUUHQW�\HDU�WRWDOV 4,258
1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�SXUSRVHV 2,357,960,885

 

GQG Partners
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021
Net Asset Value per dealing valuation 1,323,602,417
Adjustment for unamortised establishment costs^ (3,103)
$GMXVWPHQW�IRU�VLJQL¿FDQW�GHDOV�SODFHG�RQ�WUDGH�GDWH�UHÀHFWHG�LQ�FXUUHQW�\HDU�WRWDOV 266,197
1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�SXUSRVHV 1,323,865,511
 

GQG Partners
U.S. Equity Fund* 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2021
Net Asset Value per dealing valuation 514,340,649
Adjustment for unamortised establishment costs^ (30,641)
$GMXVWPHQW�IRU�VLJQL¿FDQW�GHDOV�SODFHG�RQ�WUDGH�GDWH�UHÀHFWHG�LQ�FXUUHQW�\HDU�WRWDOV 178,331
1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�SXUSRVHV 514,488,339
 
* GQG Partners U.S. Equity Fund commenced trading on 2 February 2021, therefore there are no annual comparatives available.

As at 31 December 2020

GQG Partners 
Emerging Markets 

Equity Fund 
USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Net Asset Value per dealing valuation 1,756,714,654
Adjustment for unamortised establishment costs^ (54,549)
1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�SXUSRVHV 1,756,660,105
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GQG Partners
Global Equity Fund 

USD 
As at 

31 December 2020
Net Asset Value per dealing valuation 1,059,593,433
Adjustment for unamortised establishment costs^ (12,246)
$GMXVWPHQW�IRU�VLJQL¿FDQW�GHDOV�SODFHG�RQ�WUDGH�GDWH�UHÀHFWHG�LQ�FXUUHQW�\HDU�WRWDOV (8,577,563)
1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�SXUSRVHV 1,051,003,624
 

A�)RU�¿QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�SXUSRVHV��XQDPRUWLVHG�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�FRVWV� LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�1HW�$VVHW�9DOXH�IRU�VKDUHKROGHU�GHDOLQJ�
SXUSRVHV�DUH�ZULWWHQ�R൵�LQ�IXOO�LQ�WKHLU�¿UVW�\HDU�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,$6����³,QWDQJLEOH�$VVHWV´��IRU�VKDUHKROGHU�GHDOLQJ�SXUSRVHV�
WKH\�DUH�DPRUWLVHG�RYHU�¿YH�\HDUV�

Net Asset Value Reconciliation (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020 (Continued)
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UCITS V Remuneration Disclosure

The below disclosure is  made in respect of the remuneration policies of Bridge Fund Management Limited (“Manager”) in 
accordance with the European Union Directive 2014/91/EU as implemented in Ireland by S.I. No. 143/2016 - European Union 
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) (Amendment) Regulations 2016. This requires UCITS 
PDQDJHPHQW� FRPSDQLHV� WR� HVWDEOLVK� DQG� DSSO\� UHPXQHUDWLRQ� SROLFLHV� DQG� SUDFWLFHV� WKDW� SURPRWH� VRXQG� DQG� H൵HFWLYH� ULVN�
PDQDJHPHQW��DQG�GR�QRW�HQFRXUDJH�ULVN�WDNLQJ�ZKLFK�LV�LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ULVN�SUR¿OH�RI�WKH�8&,76���

The Bridge Remuneration Policy applies to all UCITS for which it acts as manager.

$OO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�SDLG�WR�,GHQWL¿HG�6WD൵�FDQ�EH�GLYLGHG�LQWR�

��)L[HG�UHPXQHUDWLRQ��SD\PHQWV�RU�EHQH¿WV�ZLWKRXW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�DQ\�SHUIRUPDQFH�FULWHULD���DQG
 
��9DULDEOH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ��DGGLWLRQDO�SD\PHQWV�RU�EHQH¿WV�GHSHQGLQJ�RQ�SHUIRUPDQFH�RU��LQ�FHUWDLQ�FDVHV��RWKHU�FRQWUDFWXDO�FULWHULD��
which is not based on the performance of the UCITS.
 
7KH�0DQDJHU�KDV�GHVLJQDWHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�SHUVRQV�DV�,GHQWL¿HG�6WD൵�
 
1. Executive and Non-Executive members of the management body of the Company e.g. CEO, Directors, Executive and Non-
Executive partners;
 
2. Senior management;
 
���5LVN�WDNHUV�±�VWD൵�ZKR�FDQ�H[HUW�PDWHULDO�LQÀXHQFH�RQ�WKH�0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\�RU�RQ�WKH�8&,76�RU�$,)V�LW�PDQDJHV�
 
4. Those in control functions: Operations, HR, Compliance, Finance where applicable;
 
���6WD൵�ZKRVH�WRWDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�WDNHV�WKHP�LQWR�WKH�EUDFNHW�RI�VHQLRU�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�ULVN�WDNHUV��ZKRVH�SURIHVVLRQDO�DFWLYLWLHV�
have a material impact on the Company’s risk position or those of the UCITS and/or AIFs it manages and
 
���&DWHJRULHV�RI�VWD൵�RI�WKH�HQWLWLHV�WR�ZKLFK�SRUWIROLR�PDQDJHPHQW�RU�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�DFWLYLWLHV�KDYH�EHHQ�GHOHJDWHG�ZKRVH�
professional activities have a material impact on the Company’s risk position or those of the UCITS and/or AIFs it manages.
 
The Manager has a business model, policies and procedures, which by their nature do not promote excessive risk taking and take 
account of the nature, scale and complexity of the Manager and the UCITS. The Remuneration Policy is designed to discourage 
ULVN�WDNLQJ�WKDW�LV�LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ULVN�SUR¿OH�RI�WKH�8&,76�DQG�WKH�0DQDJHU�LV�QRW�LQFHQWLYLVHG�RU�UHZDUGHG�IRU�WDNLQJ�
excessive risk.
 
The Manager is required under UCITS regulations to make quantitative disclosures of remuneration. Disclosures are provided 
LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�,GHQWL¿HG�6WD൵�ZKR�DUH�HPSOR\HG�GLUHFWO\�E\�WKH�0DQDJHU�DQG�,GHQWL¿HG�VWD൵�ZKR�KDYH�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�PDWHULDOO\�
LPSDFW�WKH�ULVN�SUR¿OH�RI�WKH�8&,76�LQFOXGLQJ�LQGLYLGXDOV�ZKR��DOWKRXJK�QRW�GLUHFWO\�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�0DQDJHU��DUH�DVVLJQHG�E\�
their employer to carry out services directly by the Manager.
 
Remuneration details for the Manager are disclosed below:

Description 1XPEHU�RI�
EHQH¿FLDULHV

Total remuneration 
paid

Fixed remuneration 
paid

Variable 
remuneration paid

7RWDO�6WD൵�5HPXQHUDWLRQ 29 €2,137,652 €1,807,402 €330,250
Senior Management (including 
executives), risk takers and other 
LGHQWL¿HG�VWD൵

8 €1,003,801 €760,801 €243,000

'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�3ROLF\��LQFOXGLQJ��EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��D�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�KRZ�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�DQG�EHQH¿WV�DUH�FDOFXODWHG�
DQG�WKH�LGHQWLW\�RI�SHUVRQV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DZDUGLQJ�WKH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�DQG�EHQH¿WV�LV�DYDLODEOH�DW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�ZHEVLWH��
https://bridgeconsulting.ie/management-company-services/
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GQG PARTNERS LLC 

$QDO\VLV�RI�8&,76�DQG�$,)�DVVHWV�XQGHU�PDQDJHPHQW��$80��DV�D�SURSRUWLRQ�RI�WRWDO�$80�

$V�RI�'HFHPEHU����������

Based on an analysis of GQG’s UCITS and AIF fund client assets under management as a proportion of GQG’s total assets under 
management, and the determination that GQG’s AUM attributable to such European fund clients is 8.59% of its total AUM, it is 
reasonable for GQG to rely on a proportionate application of EU remuneration requirements and a disapplication of the Payout 
Process Rules and the requirement to establish a GQG Remuneration Committee under: 

• WKH�$,)0'� DQG� WKH� 8&,76�'LUHFWLYHV� �VSHFL¿FDOO\� 'LUHFWLYH� ��������(8� RI� WKH� (XURSHDQ� 3DUOLDPHQW� DQG� RI� WKH�
Council); 

• guidance published by the European Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA”), including the “Guidelines on sound 
remuneration policies under the UCITS Directive” and the “Guidelines on sound remuneration policies under the 
AIFMD” published by the ESMA; and 

• guidance published by Member State regulatory authorities and industry associations. 
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